Notice of Meeting
Special Meeting of the Keene City Council

Thursday, May 23, 2019
Gary Heinrich
Mayor
Lisa Parrish
Place I

Cheryl Schram
Place II

James Belz
Place III

Rob Foster
Ward I

Gwen Beeson
Mayor Pro Tem (Ward II)

Robert Cooper
Ward III

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the
City of Keene will be held on Thursday, May 23, 2019 at 6:00 PM at the
Keene City Hall, located at 1000 N Old Betsy Rd (FM 2280), Keene,
Texas, in the City Council Chambers.
City Hall is wheelchair accessible. The entry ramp is at the front with entry at
the front entrance to City Hall. Reasonable accommodations to furnish
auxiliary aids or assistance to assist persons with special needs will be
provided when forty-eight (48) hours advance notice is given. Please contact
the City Secretary at 817-641-3336.
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Agenda

Keene City Council

May 23, 2019

Call to order and certification of quorum
Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flags of United States and Texas Flag.
Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag: Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to
thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible.
1. Public Comments
(Citizens are invited to speak on any topic; however, unless the item is specifically
noted on this agenda, the City Council is required under the Texas Open Meetings
Act to limit its response to one of the following: Responding with a statement of
specific factual information or reciting the City’s existing policy on that
issue; or Directing the person making the inquiry to visit with City Staff about the
issue. (No Council deliberation is permitted.) Citizens are required to stand when
speaking, state their name and address and the comment time is limited to three
(3) minutes. The amount of time given to the public to speak may be changed
at any time at the Mayor’s discretion.)
2. Mayor's Comments:
3. Discussion and possible action regarding the minutes dated April 18, 2019 and
May 2, 2019.
4. PUBLIC HEARING: Discussion for a Zoning Change of property described as
Abstract 114, Tract 1, 1A, and 2, BBB & C RR CO being 2.21 acres and located at
402 S College Drive, Keene, Johnson County, Texas 76059. The current zoning
is “SF-2” – Single Family Residential District -2. The requested zoning is “MF” –
Multi-family Residential District.
5. Discussion and possible action for a Zoning Change of property described as
Abstract 114, Tract 1, 1A, and 2, BBB & C RR CO being 2.21 acres and located at
402 S College Drive, Keene, Johnson County, Texas 76059. The current zoning
is “SF-2” – Single Family Residential District -2. The requested zoning is “MF” –
Multi-family Residential District.
6. PUBLIC HEARING: Discussion for a Special Use Permit for Southwestern
Adventist University located at 100 W Hillcrest Street, Keene, Texas 76059.
Southwestern Adventist University is requesting a special use permit for a digital
sign at 100 block of North Old Betsy Road.
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7. Discussion and possible action for a Special Use Permit for Southwestern
Adventist University located at 210 W Hillcrest Street, Keene, Texas 76059.
Southwestern Adventist University is requesting a special use permit for a digital
sign at 100 block of North Old Betsy Road.
8. Discussion and possible action regarding a variance for Pinnergy to City Ordinance
No. 2016-542.
9. Presentation and discussion with possible action regarding the final audit report
for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018.
10. Discussion and possible action regarding the March 2019 financial reports.
11. Presentation and discussion with direction to staff regarding the City’s water supply
and distribution system.
12. Discussion and possible action regarding an ordinance disannexing certain
corporate territory comprising approximately 102.08 acres from the city’s corporate
limits (save and except certain designated roads) and retaining such land in the
city’s extraterritorial jurisdiction.
13. Discussion and possible action regarding an ordinance releasing certain
designated extraterritorial jurisdiction comprising approximately 40.67 acres from
the city’s extraterritorial jurisdiction
14. Discussion and possible action regarding Animal Control.
15. Discussion and possible action regarding budget amendments to the FY 20182019 Budget regarding:
a) Economic Development Director salary and benefits
b) Water supply purchase expenditure
16. Presentation and discussion with direction to staff regarding FY 2019-2020
Budget Calendar.
17. Discussion and possible action on removing Brian LaBorde as an authorized
signer to all the accounts at Pinnacle Bank for the City of Keene.
18. City Manager’s Report:
• Fire/ EMS Department

• Capital Improvement
Projects
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

• Special Projects
• Status on Future Agenda
Requests
• Transportation
• Wastewater Projects
• Water Projects
• Animal Control
• Legal matters
• Livestreaming
• Parks & Recreation

Developments
Drainages Projects
Engineering Department
Finance Department
Grant related Projects
Law Enforcement
Legislative Update
Planning Department
Road Project
City website and social
media platforms

19. Discussion and requests for future items on the agenda.
20. Adjourn
I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the
City Council of Keene, Texas is a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted
a true and correct copy of said notice on the official bulletin board of City Hall, a place
convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and that said notice
was posted on or before 6:00 P.M., Monday, May 20, 2019.
_____________________________
City Secretary, Holly Owens, T.R.M.C.
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MINUTES
of the
KEENE CITY COUNCIL
THURSDAY, APRIL 18, 2019
PRESENT: Mayor Gary Heinrich, James Belz, Lisa Parrish, Robert Cooper,
Rob Foster, Cheryl Schram, and Gwen Beeson.
ABSENT: None
CALLED TO ORDER: Called the Regular meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.
Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance – Mayor Gary Heinrich
1.

Public Comments.

Don Beeson, 607 Woodlawn, came forward. Mr. Beeson stated that the Keene
ambulance started in 1971. The reason we went to paid ambulance
employees was because there weren’t any volunteers. It has grown into the
crew that it is today. EMS is not a money-making business, but it is a necessity.
Careflight and AMR are in the money-making business. They must turn a
profit. I would like to see the ambulance service stay in Keene and yes, the Fire
Chief needs help and more employees. I think the Council should grant the
Chief additional funds for overtime and require a minimum of three
employees each shift at least to the end of the fiscal year.
2.

Mayor’s Comments.

No comments and no announcements.
3.

Presentation and discussion with direction to staff regarding EMS/Fire
services and related matters.

Chief Warner came forward with a presentation. Back in February, we started
looking at the EMS issue. Staff was asked to look at the recommendations and
those costs. Representatives from AMR and Careflight are here to provide any
additional information. Staff asked for proposals from AMR, Careflight,
MedStar and Acadian. MedStar and Acadian both sent information that stated
that they will not be participating. Information we will consider is increase to
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budgeted expenditures, lost revenue, capital cost of ambulance replacement
and how we are going to fund them. Current revenue that funds Fire/Rescue is
$1.1 million. 70% of that is paid for by maintenance and operations tax rate
which is the general fund. We do get some provisions from our emergency
service district, that is 12%. That is strictly fire related. Fire services is 0% but
there is some money, but it is negligible. EMS collections is 18%. Any revenue
collected here goes into the general fund and is distributed throughout the
City’s budget. If we looked at that going strictly to the fire department it only
accounts for 20%. The budgeted revenue is $286,200 less budgeted direct and
indirect expenses calculated at $200,651 which equals net annual revenue of
$85,549. This includes two full time staff on the ambulance every day. This
number provides the most relevant expense information for budget purposes.
Even so, there is not currently enough staff to assign two personnel to the
ambulance and if the ambulance service was no longer a source of revenue,
these ambulance related expenses would have a minimal decrease. Additional
costs for personnel ranges from $201,000 to $603,000, with an increase in line
items for training, uniforms, equipment ranging from $26,500 to $79,000. Last
additional cost is an ambulance replacement cost of $225,000. Additional costs
for contracted services would range from $30,000 to $225,000 with a lost
revenue of $286,000. After initial year of implementation, revenue from sale of
ambulances is $30,000 with a minimal reduction in line items for current
expenses. NFPA standards recommends minimum staffing of four per fire
engine and two staff per ambulance. The City of Keene is operating with three
budgeted staff per shift to cover both the fire engine and the ambulance. This
problem hinders the ability of firefighters/paramedics to safely carry out their
jobs. Additionally, it affects the ability of the department to respond to calls
and causes a reliance on other entities to provide mutual aid. Staffing levels are
so low that if the ambulance service were no longer provided, the City of Keene
would still not meet minimum staffing levels per NFPA. The City of Keene Fire
and Rescue department has a high turnover rate due in part to not having
enough staff to efficiently share the workload and lower salaries than nearby
area by comparison. The data shows the number of EMS related calls in the City
of Keene in comparison with nearby stations and the number of overlapping
calls which required mutual aid. This is due to insufficient staffing levels in the
City of Keene to cover the overlapping calls. In 2018, 1,888 total calls: 371
overlapping, 180 no crew and 141 EMS no crew. We are the 3rd busiest fire
station in Johnson County. The 4th busiest EMS provider in Johnson County,
municipally provided. We are number one busiest MICU, ambulance provided
service in Johnson County. We are doing that with half the staff. A comparison
chart was provided showing similar and nearby cities. Keene has 1 fire fighter
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for every 609 people. To keep EMS services in house we need to prepare a plan
to increase staff to NFPA required minimum staffing or other determined level
of staffing for Keene Fire and Rescue to adequately respond to Fire and EMS
calls. We must prepare a compensation study with a goal of reducing staff
turnover. Review grant opportunities and other revenue sources with a goal of
increasing revenue to further subsidize increase in personnel related costs.
Review budget expenses for areas of possible decrease to subsidize increase in
personnel related costs and consider timing and staggering of personnel hires.
Finally, consider full time FF/paramedic and/or paramedic only for ambulance.
Possible grant opportunities and other revenue sources. The SAFER grant is a
FEMA grant which is intended to aid cities in reaching minimum staffing levels.
If awarded, the grant pays for 75% of personnel costs in the first two years and
35% the third and final year. We have applied for this year’s grant. We found a
local grant writer to assist for $1,000. The Firefighters Association paid for half
of that to assist us in applying for this grant. We have a good chance according
to the review board. However, their concerns are that we are far below staffing
standards. Another revenue source is the ASSPP which is a program that aids
entities by allowing recovery of additional payments from medicare from prior
billings and receipts. The deadline to apply each year is March 22. This may be
an option for an additional revenue source for 2020 if the ambulance service is
kept in house. Currently the City of Keene receives revenue from the ESD
wihich includes a stipend for using volunteers based on hours worked. A
breakdown of that revenue was shown on a power point slide. The next slide
showed a scenario for additional personnel and cost. This is based on current
salaries. Additional costs for personnel ranging from $201,000 to $603,000 and
an increase in line items for training, uniforms, equipment ranging from
$26,500 to $79,000 with an ambulance replacement cost of $225,000. For
contracted services, the additional costs would range from $30,000 to $225,000
with a lost revenue of $286,000. After initial year of implementation, revenue
from sale of ambulances is $30,000 with minimal reduction in line items for
current expenses. The question is how do we pay for this? The options will
either result in an increase in expenditures or a decrease in revenue. Possible
solutions for the near future are increase in property tax rates, increase in
water rates and transfer to the general fund or eliminate a city service.
Mayor Heinrich requested clarification regarding overlapping and no crew
situations.
Chief Warner stated that the two on staff right now are on a call. A second call
came in, so we are unable to respond. That is a no crew.

3

Mayor Heinrich stated we add a third person to each shift, what is the
increased amount of possible revenue by making more calls.
Chief Warner stated that is difficult to answer because it depends on the call
and the insurance of the person being transported.
Rob Foster asked about out of the 1800 calls, there were only 700 responses.
Chief Warner stated that there were 1,888 calls that we responded to. Of those
calls, 371 were overlapping calls and 180 were no crew calls.
Rob Foster clarified that out of the 1,888 calls, we couldn’t respond to 180
because of no crew.
Mayor Heinrich asked about overlapping.
Chief Warner stated that overlapping is when his crew is divided and
responding to more than one call.
Brian LaBorde stated that we only have one ambulance in service and only the
ambulance is the revenue source because of transport. The number that needs
to be looked at is the EMS no crew number.
Chief Warner stated that the EMS no crew number would go down and the
overlapping calls would go up.
Gwen Beeson asked about depending on the call an EMT is necessary.
Councilwoman Beeson asked if the Chief is an EMT and if he steps in when
necessary.
Chief Warner stated yes. The Chief’s position in Keene is considered a working
chief.
Cheryl Schram asked about the employee turnover. Is our turnover number
greater than the surrounding cities or cities of our size?
Chief Warner stated that he doesn’t have that number.
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Cheryl Schram clarified that employees do leave for better pay and that is
typical but not to our extent.
Chief Warner agreed.
Ryan Howerton came forward. Captain Howerton believes that our turnover is
more than others.
Cheryl Schram asked how he believes that could be changed.
Captain Howerton stated more pay and more manpower. This is a big safety
issue.
Cheryl Schram stated that Fire and Rescue is asking for more manpower not
only to meet the current needs of the community but to do more for the
community.
Captain Howerton agreed. More manpower will allow us to do more and do it
safely and more efficiently. With our current manpower, if I was to show up to
a structural fire alone, I must make a choice to fight the fire or search for
people.
Mayor Heinrich asked what would make you enter a structural fire.
Captain Howerton stated if he knew that someone was trapped inside.
Gwen Beeson asked why it takes two people to do CPR.
Captain Howerton stated that one does the compressions and the other does
meds. It takes two to remove someone from a fire too.
Chief Warner added someone must drive the ambulance too.
Gwen Beeson stated that she understands the two men in and two men out
rule. What are the exceptions to the rule?
Captain Howerton stated it depends on the stage of the fire.
Chief Warner added that the reason for the two men rule is while there are two
men on the inside, there needs to be two men on the outside with the same
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gear on ready to rescue those firefighters if necessary. The only reason to enter
a fire without that rule is if a confirmed someone is in immediate danger.
James Belz stated that every time he hears the ambulance he is proud. We
appreciate all of you. This is a major thing and decisions need to be made. We
understand that more personnel are needed, and we need to try and find a way
to make that happen.
Mayor Heinrich asked about the revenue from the ESD.
Chief Warner stated $193,000. That is strictly for firefighting. Some of that
money goes for volunteers.
Mayor Heinrich asked when does the ESD take out of the budget the money
they give us for ambulance.
Chief Warner stated that he can put the Mayor in touch with the Board to find
that out. The ESD prefers supporting the paid firefighters more than the
volunteers because the paid firefighters are the anchors.
Cheryl Schram asked if we get any of that .06 cents you mentioned earlier.
Chief Warner stated that the .06 cents is a tax paid to the County not the ESD.
We get a portion of that. Johnson County contracted with AMR. However, the
City of Burleson and Cleburne elected to not get any since they have their own
ambulance service.
Mayor Heinrich asked if there were any stipulations on how much time
someone is required to stay on if we send them to school and/or training.
Chief Warner stated that he is working with HR on doing that. We are looking at
an agreement that if we, the City is going to pay to train them, they must work
for us for a set amount of time. If they leave before that, they are responsible
for paying back the City for that training.
Rob Foster asked how many are on staff.
Chief Warner stated on paper, we have three per day. Typically, though, we
have one sick, in school or on vacation.
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Rob Foster stated that $50,000 is a good number to entice someone.
Mayor Heinrich asked to see the slide for additional personnel and the cost.
Chief Warner went over the slide again showing the cost per personnel.
Mayor Heinrich stated that we need to look at adding $277,000 to the budget
for three additional personnel for fire and $50,000 per year for five years for a
new ambulance.
Lisa Parrish asked when they will let us know about the grant.
Chief Warner stated late May.
Brian LaBorde summarized tonight’s meeting.
Mayor Heinrich asked about Venus being 100% volunteer.
Chief Warner stated yes Venus is 100% volunteer except for the Chief. The
Chief is paid.
Mayor Heinrich asked if they get to all their calls.
Chief Warner stated that he doesn’t have their numbers.
Mayor Heinrich stated that looking at similar cities in size, Keene’s pay is
comparable. It looks like they go to larger cities for more pay.
Chief Warner stated that Keene has a reputation as a training city.
James Belz asked if the Chief is going to be able to hire three more.
Chief Warner stated yes. We currently have four applicants waiting.
Mayor Heinrich asked about Careflight’s quote on services. It shows that if we
add $1.00 to the water bill that will cover Careflight’s services.
Chief Warner stated that Careflight would get all the revenue and it is a
voluntary option.
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Careflight representative came forward to explain the service.
Chief Warner closed his presentation.
Lisa Parrish stated that she would like to find a way to take care of the
firefighters.
Brian LaBorde stated that we will bring this to the budget workshops and start
working on a plan.
Blain Stroud came forward. We appreciate the interest of Council wanting to fix
the problem. If it came down to pay increase or staffing, we want staffing.
Mayor Heinrich asked how long he had been here.
Blain Stroud stated ten years. I plan to retire here.
Ed Cheever came forward. One of the things worth mentioning are the
intangible items such as pride. We have pride for our department. The citizens
have pride in our department and they take ownership with their support.
4.

Adjournment.

The meeting adjourned at 8:08 PM.

By:

___________________________
Gary Heinrich, Mayor

Attest: _____________________
Holly Owens, T.R.M.C., City Secretary
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MINUTES
of the
KEENE CITY COUNCIL
THURSDAY, MAY 2, 2019
PRESENT: Mayor Gary Heinrich, James Belz, Lisa Parrish, Robert Cooper,
Rob Foster, Cheryl Schram, and Gwen Beeson.
ABSENT: None
CALLED TO ORDER: Called the Special meeting to order at 7:00 PM
Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance & Texas Pledge – Mayor Gary Heinrich
1.

Executive Session -- (Closed to the public as provided by Texas Government
Code) As authorized by Section 551.071(2) of the Texas Government Code,
the Workshop, Special Called, or Regular Meeting may be convened into
Closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice
from the City Attorney on any Agenda Item listed herein, or on any matter,
regardless of whether such matter is listed on this agenda, where confidential
attorney-client communications are deemed appropriate.
a) Texas Government Code Sections Section 551.074 (personnel
matters): Discussion on the resignation of the City Manager and
related matters.
Council entered into Executive Session at 7:05 PM.

2.

Reconvene into Open Session for possible action resulting from any items
posted and discussed in Executive Session.
Council reconvened into Open Session at 8:28 PM. No action was taken.

3.

Adjournment.
Council adjourned at 8:28 PM.
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By:

___________________________
Gary Heinrich, Mayor

Attest: _____________________
Holly Owens, T.R.M.C., City Secretary
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City Council
Agenda Item Report
May 23, 2019
Contact – Don Martin
dmartin@keenetx.com
817-641-3336, ext. 109
SUBJECT: Discussion and possible recommendation regarding the
zoning change of property located at Abstract 114 Tract 1, 1A, and 2,
BBB & C RR CO being 2.21 acres and located at 402 S College Drive,
Keene, Johnson County, Texas 76059. The current zoning is “SF-2” –
Single Family Residential District -2. The requested zoning is “MF” –
Multi-Family Residential District.

1. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY
Currently the property is zoned SF-2, Single Family. Adara Luxury Homes is
requesting that the property be rezoned to MF, Multi-Family. The property is
located at Abstract 114, Tract 1, 1A, and 2, BBB & C RR CO being 2.21 acres and
located at 402 S College Drive, Keene, Johnson County, Texas 76059.
Planning and Zoning Commission will hear this case on May 20, 2019. A brief
recap of the meeting with motions will be emailed on Tuesday.
2. FINANCIAL IMPACT
No financial impact to the City. However, if the development moves forward it
will bring in property tax and additional residents to the City.
3. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION
• Conduct a public hearing.
• Consider approval of a zoning change.
4. ENCLOSURES
• Site plan
• Legal Ad
• Letter to residents within 200-ft.

1000 N Old Betsy Rd, Cleburne, TX 76031 * Office 817-641-3336 * Fax 817-556-2060

Name
Address
City, State Zip
May 10, 2019
Since the tax roll indicates you are a property owner within 200 feet of the property
requesting the zoning change, you are being notified of these public hearings and are
invited to attend the scheduled public hearings to voice your support or opposition to this
request.
RE: Zoning Change of property described as Abstract 114, Tract 1, 1A, and 2, BBB & C
RR CO being 2.21 acres and located at 402 S College Drive, Keene, Johnson County,
Texas 76059. The current zoning is “SF-2” – Single Family Residential District -2. The
requested zoning is “MF” – Multi-Family Residential District.
The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Keene will hold a public hearing
scheduled for Monday, May 20, 2019 at 6:00 PM and will be held in the Council Chambers
at 1000 N Old Betsy Rd., Cleburne, TX 76031.
City Council for the City of Keene will hold a public hearing scheduled for Thursday, May
23, 2019 at 6:00 PM and will be held in the Council Chambers at 1000 N Old Betsy Rd.,
Cleburne, TX 76031.
Any questions or requests for accommodations or interpretative services for these
meetings must be made 48 hours in advance for the meeting. Call 1-817- 641-3336,
Ext 110 or email citysecretary@keenetx.com.

X
Holly Owens
City Secretary

Property
100 W. Fourth

402. S College Re-zone
Name
Felipe & Adriana Porras

Mail Address
100 W. Fourth St.
Keene. TX. 76059

312 S. College

Carmen Curubo

212 S. College Dr.
Keene, TX. 76059

102 W. Fourth

David & Thelma Lazarus

216 W. Fourth St.
Keene, TX. 76059

104 W. Fourth

Amanda Griffin

104 W. Fourth St.
Keene, TX. 76059

106 W. Fourth

Myrtle Lear

106 W. Fourth St.
Keene, TX. 76059

112 W. Fourth

Alisa Zelaya Perez

112 W. Fourth St.
Keene, TX. 76059

113 W. Fourth

Sergio Manzano

113 W. Fourth St.
Keene, TX. 76059

107 W. Fourth

Dionicio Rivera

11913 Paseo Dorado Cir.

El Paso, TX. 79936

414 S. College

Charles Couch

414 S. College Dr.
Keene, TX. 76059

412 S. College

Kenneth Cooper

412 S. College Dr.
Keene, TX. 76059

Property

410 S. College

402. S College Re-zone
Name

Mail Address

Jle Development LLC

120 E FM 544
STE 72 PMB 233
Murphy, TX. 75094

413 S. College

Edgardo Perez

404 E. Oakdale St.
Keene, TX. 76059

411 S. College

Johnny Pereira Sostre

217 Shady Oak Rd.
Keene, TX. 76059

409 S. College

Sidney Byron Findley

1772 Quail Cir.
San Luis Obispo, CA. 9340

S. College

Paul Siegmund

P.O. Box 763
Midlothian, TX. 76065

405 S. College

Emery & Patricia Lockwood

405 S. College Dr.
Keene, TX. 76059

401 S. College

Noel Halverson

401 S. College Dr.
Keene, TX. 76059

100 & 106 E. Fourth

Duane Barnes

713 Barnes Ave.
Cleburne, TX. 76031

311 S. College

Vera Dyer

311 X. College Dr.
Keene, TX. 76059

Property
402 S. College

402. S College Re-zone
Name
Cody Weiss

Mail Address
279 W. Hidden Creek Pkwy.
Burleson, TX. 76028

Keene ISD

5/15/2019
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Notice Details

Legal Notice of Public Hearing The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Keene will
hold a public hearing scheduled for Monday, May 20, 2019 at 6:00 PM and will be held in the
Council Chambers at 1000 N Old Betsy Rd., Cleburne, TX 76031. City Council for the City of
Keene will hold a public hearing scheduled for Thursday, May 23, 2019 at 6:00 PM and will be held
in the Council Chambers at 1000 N Old Betsy Rd., Cleburne, TX 76031. The Planning and Zoning
Commission is a recommending body only. The City Council is authorized to approve or deny the
request. Any interested person will be allowed to appear and speak at the public hearings. RE:
Zoning Change of property described as Abstract 114, Tract 1, 1A, and 2, BBB & C RR CO being
2.21 acres and located at 402 S College Drive, Keene, Johnson County, Texas 76059. The current
zoning is “SF-2” – Single Family Residential District -2. The requested zoning is “MF” – MultiFamily Residential District. RE: Special Use Permit for Southwestern Adventist University located
at 100 W Hillcrest Street, Keene, Texas 76059. Southwestern Adventist University is requesting a
special use permit for a digital sign at 100 block of North Old Betsy Road. Any questions or
requests for accommodations or interpretative services for these meetings must be made 48
hours in advance for the meeting. Call 1-817-641-3336 ext. 110 or ask for the City Secretary,
Holly Owens.
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ORDINANCE NO. 2019-594
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KEENE, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 157,
"ZONING", OF THE CITY OF KEENE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY REZONING A
CERTAIN TRACT OR TRACTS OF LAND WITHIN THE CITY OF KEENE, TEXAS,
BEING LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS ABSTRACT 114, TRACT 1, 1A, AND 2, BBB & CO
RR CO LOCATED AT 402 S COLLEGE DRIVE, KEENE, JOHNSON COUNTY, TEXAS
BEING APPROXIMATELY 2.21 ACRES, AND MORE FULLY AND COMPLETELY
DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A’ FROM “SF-2” SINGLE FAMILY TO “MF” MULTIFAMILY, AS DEPICTED ON THE APPROVED SITE PLAN ATTACHED HERETO AND
INCORPORATED HEREIN AS EXHIBIT “B”, SUBJECT TO TO THE SPECIFIC
REQUIREMENTS CONTAINED IN THIS ORDINANCE; CORRECTING THE
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP; AMENDING THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN;
PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE CUMULATIVE OF ALL
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION IN THE OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER;
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY FOR
VIOLATIONS HEREOF; AND REPEALING CONFLICTING ORDINANCES.
WHEREAS, the City of Keene, Texas is a home rule City acting under its Charter adopted by the
electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 9 of the Texas
Local Government Code; and,
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 211 of the Local Government Code, the City has the authority
to adopt a zoning ordinance and map regulating the location and use of buildings, other structures
and land for business, industrial, residential and other purposes, and to amend said ordinance and
map for promoting the public health, safety, morals and general welfare, all in accordance with a
plan; and,
WHEREAS, the hereinafter described property is currently zoned as “SF-2” Single Family under
the City’s Zoning Ordinance; and,
WHEREAS, a change in the zoning classification of said property was requested by a person or
corporation have a proprietary interest in said property; and
WHEREAS, the City of Keene Council and the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of
Keene, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the City of Keene,
have given the required notices and held the required public hearings and afforded a full and fair
hearing to all property owners generally and to all persons interested in and situated in the affected
area and in the vicinity thereof regarding the requested rezoning and comprehensive plan
amendment described herein; and
WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the Planning &
Zoning Commission and any other information and materials received at the public hearing, the
City Council of the, City of Keene, Texas, has determined that the zoning request and
comprehensive plan amendment would be in the interest of public health, safety and welfare of the
citizens of the City of Keene.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
KEENE, TEXAS;
SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF PREMISES. The above and foregoing premises are true
and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes.
SECTION 2. ZONING AMENDMENT. That Chapter 157 of the Keene Code of Ordinances,
the same being the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Keene, as amended, is hereby
amended by so that the permitted uses in the hereinafter described areas be altered, changed and
amended as shown and described below:
BEING LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS ABSTRACT 114, TRACT 1, 1A, AND 2, BBB & CO
RR CO LOCATED AT 402 S COLLEGE DRIVE, KEENE, JOHNSON COUNTY, TEXAS
BEING APPROXIMATELY 2.21 ACRES, AND MORE FULLY AND COMPLETELY
DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A’ FROM “SF-2” SINGLE FAMILY TO “MF” MULTIFAMILY, AS DEPICTED ON THE APPROVED SITE PLAN ATTACHED HERETO AND
INCORPORATED HEREIN AS EXHIBIT “B”.
SECTION 3. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT. That the City’s comprehensive plan
and accompanying map, as adopted in Section 150.03 of the Keene Code of Ordinances, is hereby
amended to reflect the zoning change authorized by this Ordinance, and City staff is hereby
directed and authorized to update the City’s comprehensive plan and accompanying map to
implement the approved changes.
SECTION 4. SAVINGS. This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the City
of Keene, and shall not repeal any of the provisions of those ordinances except in those instances
where the provisions of those ordinances are in direct conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance; provided, however, that any complaint, notice, action, cause of action, or claim which
prior to the effective date of this Ordinance has been initiated or has arisen under or pursuant to
such other ordinance(s) shall continue to be governed by the provisions of that ordinance or those
ordinances, and for that purpose that ordinance or those ordinances shall be deemed to remain and
shall continue in full force and effect.
SECTION 5. MAP. The official zoning map of the City of Keene shall be amended to reflect the
change in zoning made by this Ordinance.
SECTION 6. PENALTY. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provision of this
Ordinance shall be punished by a penalty of a fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars
($2,000) for each offense and each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to
constitute a separate offense.
SECTION 7. SEVERABILITY. The sections, paragraphs, sentences, phrases. and words of this
Ordinance are severable, and If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that
section or provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason
judged invalid or unconstitutional, the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision
of this ordinance or the application of any other section or provision to any person, firm,
corporation, situation or circumstance, nor shall adjudication affect any other section or provision

of the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Keene, Texas, and/or the City’s
comprehensive plan, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted the valid
portions and applications of the Ordinance without the valid parts and to this end the provisions of
this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.
SECTION 8. REPEALER. That all ordinances of the City of Keene in conflict with the
provisions of this Ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict.
SECTION 9. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall be in full force from its passage and
publication as required by law, or on May 23, 2019, whichever is later, and it is so ordained.

PASSED AND APPROVED on the 23rd day of May 2019.

______________________________
Mayor, Gary Heinrich
ATTEST:

_______________________________
City Secretary, Holly Owens, TRMC
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City Council
Agenda Item Report
May 23, 2019
Contact – Don Martin
dmartin@keenetx.com
817-641-3336, ext. 109

SUBJECT: Discussion and possible action for a special use permit for a
digital sign located at 100 W Hillcrest Street, Keene, TX 76059

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY
Southwestern Adventist University located at 210 W Hillcrest Street is requesting
a special use permit for a digital sign. The property is zoned Public and is 3.21
acres.
2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY
All LED/digital signs require a special use permit.
Planning and Zoning Commission will hear this case on May 20, 2019. A brief
recap of the meeting with motions will be emailed on Tuesday.
3. FINANCIAL IMPACT
No financial impact to the City.
4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION
• Conduct a public hearing
• Consider approval of the SUP
5. ENCLOSURES
• Site Plan
• Legal Ad
• Letter to residents within 200-ft.
• Draft resolution
• Sign regulations

1000 N Old Betsy Rd, Cleburne, TX 76031 * Office 817-641-3336 * Fax 817-556-2060

Name
Address
City, State, Zip
May 10, 2019
Since the tax roll indicates you are a property owner within 200 feet of the property
requesting the zoning change, you are being notified of these public hearings and are
invited to attend the scheduled public hearings to voice your support or opposition to this
request.
RE: Special Use Permit for Southwestern Adventist University located at 100 W Hillcrest
Street, Keene, Texas 76059. Southwestern Adventist University is requesting a special
use permit for a digital sign at 100 block of North Old Betsy Road.
The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Keene will hold a public hearing
scheduled for Monday, May 20, 2019 at 6:00 PM and will be held in the Council Chambers
at 1000 N Old Betsy Rd., Cleburne, TX 76031.
City Council for the City of Keene will hold a public hearing scheduled for Thursday, May
23, 2019 at 6:00 PM and will be held in the Council Chambers at 1000 N Old Betsy Rd.,
Cleburne, TX 76031.
Any questions or requests for accommodations or interpretative services for these
meetings must be made 48 hours in advance for the meeting. Call 1-817- 641-3336,
Ext 110 or email citysecretary@keenetx.com.

X
Holly Owens
City Secretary

Address
219 S. Old Betsy

SWAU sign mailing list
Lvav LLC

Owner Address
3605 Oakbriar Ln.
Colleyville, TX. 76034

100 S. Old Betsy

Richard Bothe

603 Lewis Ln.
Keene, TX. 76059

208 N. Old Betsy

Jere Putnam

208 N. Old Betsy Rd.
Keene, TX. 76059

100 W. Hillcrest

SWAU/Dale Hainey

100 W. Hillcrest St.
Keene, TX. 76059

5/15/2019

notices.cleburnetimesreview.com/listing/31146276

 Home  Submit a notice

All Notices

Legal Notices

Public
Notices

Legal Notices

 Back

Source

Cleburne Times Review

Category

Legal Notices

Published Date

May 4, 2019

Notice Details

Legal Notice of Public Hearing The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Keene will
hold a public hearing scheduled for Monday, May 20, 2019 at 6:00 PM and will be held in the
Council Chambers at 1000 N Old Betsy Rd., Cleburne, TX 76031. City Council for the City of
Keene will hold a public hearing scheduled for Thursday, May 23, 2019 at 6:00 PM and will be held
in the Council Chambers at 1000 N Old Betsy Rd., Cleburne, TX 76031. The Planning and Zoning
Commission is a recommending body only. The City Council is authorized to approve or deny the
request. Any interested person will be allowed to appear and speak at the public hearings. RE:
Zoning Change of property described as Abstract 114, Tract 1, 1A, and 2, BBB & C RR CO being
2.21 acres and located at 402 S College Drive, Keene, Johnson County, Texas 76059. The current
zoning is “SF-2” – Single Family Residential District -2. The requested zoning is “MF” – MultiFamily Residential District. RE: Special Use Permit for Southwestern Adventist University located
at 100 W Hillcrest Street, Keene, Texas 76059. Southwestern Adventist University is requesting a
special use permit for a digital sign at 100 block of North Old Betsy Road. Any questions or
requests for accommodations or interpretative services for these meetings must be made 48
hours in advance for the meeting. Call 1-817-641-3336 ext. 110 or ask for the City Secretary,
Holly Owens.
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RESOLUTION NO. 2019-361
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF KEENE, TEXAS, GRANTING A SPECIAL USE
PERMIT FOR SOUTHWESTERN ADVENTIST UNIVERSITY ON PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 210 W HILLCREST STREET, KEENE, TEXAS. APPROVED SITE
PLAN EXHIBIT ATTACHED HEREIN AND INCORPORATED HEREIN AS EXHIBIT
“A” WITH AN APPROVED CONSTRUCTION AND ELECTRICAL PLANS EXHIBIT
ATTACHED HEREIN AND INCORPORATED HEREIN AS EXHIBIT “B” AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, a Special Use Permit for a LED/digital sign has been requested by a person
having a proprietary interest in the property; and,
WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Ordinances Chapter
§155.05 LED and Digital Signs, Chapter §157.365 General Provision and Chapter
§157.366 Specific Use Permit Regulations. The Planning and Zoning Commission and
the City Council have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have
afforded the persons interested and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity
thereof; and,
WHEREAS, the City Council does hereby find and determine that the granting of such
Special Use Permit is in the best interest of the public health, safety, morals and general
welfare of the City.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
KEENE, TEXAS:
SECTION 1. A Special Use Permit is hereby granted for a LED/Digital Sign on the
property located at 210 W Hillcrest, Keene, Texas and providing an effective date.

SECTION 2. This resolution shall become effective on the date of approval by the City
Council.
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _______ DAY OF ______________, 2019.
CITY OF KEENE

BY: _____________________________
Mayor, Gary Heinrich

ATTEST: _________________________
City Secretary, Holly Owens, TRMC

City Council
Staff Report
May 23, 2019
Contact: Don Martin
817641-3336, ext 109
dmartin@keenetx.com

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING
A REQUEST FOR AN EXCEPTION UNDER CHAPTER 73:
COMMERCIAL TRUCK ROUTES OF THE CITY OF KEENE
CODE OF ORDINANCES OR TAKE OTHER APPROPRIATE
DIRECTION.
SUBJECT:

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY
As Council recalls in 216, City Council passed Ordinance 2106-542 “Commercial Truck
Routes” to protect the roads and streets maintained by the City. Furthermore, in 2017
Council consider an exception to Thurman Transportation for use of CR 317 for their dayto-day deliveries. A permit was created, via windshield sticker, example attached herein,
placed on each GTI truck.

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY
Pinnergy, Ltd. is requesting a variance to this ordinance.
Under the Commercial Truck Route Ordinance, attached herein, exceptions are listed for
Council to consider:
Exceptions.
(1)

Exception provided, however, that occasional and irregular deliveries to locations
on such residential streets shall be permitted not to exceed two (2) such
deliveries per thirty-day period per each location. Traffic or deliveries to
residential locations in excess of the preceding sentence require approval by the
City Council.

(2)

When necessary to reach a terminal or to load or offload materials located at a
destination point on this street or when no other non-restricted route is available
to reach a terminal or destination point;

(3)

When doing so, the operator of the vehicle follows the shortest practical route
consistent with the reasonable operation of the vehicle;

(4)
The operator of the vehicle keeps in the operator's possession a log book,
delivery slips, or other evidence of the operator's destination and point of origin; and

(d) When traveling over the streets described in Exhibit "A and "B" of this section, the
operator of the commercial vehicle affected by this section shall permit a peace officer,
upon request, to inspect the log book, delivery slips, or other evidence of the operator's
destination and point of origin.

3.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
N/A

4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION
The item is for possible action to consider an exception.

5. ENCLOSURES
•
•

Letters of request
Map of location

May 16, 2019
Dear Mayor Heinrich, City Council, and Mr. Martin,
Pinnergy, LTD. respectfully requests a variance for the City Ordinance 2016-542 that pertains to
commercial truck traffic in the City of Keene. We haul produced water off several gas well sites that lie
within the city limits and/or require access thru the city limits. These wells are constant producers that
cannot be shut off. Due to the size and weight of our trucks, we try to minimize our time on narrower city
and county roads for safety reasons and to lessen the impact of our trucks as much as possible.
Due to the nature of our business, we are either empty or fully loaded. In bound trucks going to well sites
are empty 99% of the time. Loaded trucks leaving well sites can be up to 84,000 pounds.

Along with this letter, I have provided a copy of our overweight permit issued by the State of
Texas for 84,000 pounds, a map highlighting our routes to the well sites, and a sample sticker
with our district number and company name.
We strive to be good partners in the communities we operate in. Thank you for your
consideration in this matter.
Sincerely,
Shawn Slaton
Pinnergy, LTD.
District Manager
817-542-1260
sslaton@pinnergy.com

111 Congress Avenue, Suite 2020

Austin, TX 78701

▪

Main 512-343-8880

▪

Fax 512-343-8885

▪

www.pinnergy.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Keene, Texas
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Keene, Texas (the
City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Page 2
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2018, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Emphasis of Matters
The 2017 financial statements, before they were restated for the matters discussed in Note 11, were
audited by other auditors, and their report thereon dated February 8, 2018, expressed unmodified
opinions. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.
As discussed in Note 11 to the financial statements, in 2018 the City adopted Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison, pension and other postemployment benefits information
as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the GASB, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying combining fund statements as listed in
the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements.
The combining fund statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining fund
statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
September 30, 2018

As management of the City of Keene (the City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2018. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the City’s
financial statements and accompanying notes, which can be found on pages 11 through 47 of this report.
Financial Highlights



The City’s total combined net position was $12,990,464 at September 30, 2018 of which
$920,930 was unrestricted.
The City’s general fund reported a fund balance this year of $706,226 of which $666,834 is
unassigned and subject to use at the City’s discretion.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This annual report consists of three parts—management’s
discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and required supplementary information.
The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that
present different views of the City:

Required Components of
the City’s Annual
Financial Report


The first two statements are governmentwide financial statements that provide both
long-term and short-term information about the
City’s overall financial status.

The remaining statements are fund
financial statements that focus on individual
parts of the government, reporting the City’s
operations in more detail than the governmentwide statements.

The governmental funds statements tell
how general government services were
financed in the short-term as well as what
remains for future spending.

Proprietary fund statements offer short
and long-term financial information about the
activities the government operates like
businesses.

The financial statements also include
notes to the financial statements explaining
information in the financial statements and
provide more detailed data.

The report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the
basic financial statements themselves.

Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of
this annual report are arranged and related to
one another.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
September 30, 2018

The table below summarizes the major features of the City’s financial statements, including the
portion of the City government they cover and the types of information they contain.
Type of Statements

Scope

Government-wide
The entire City’s
government


Required financial
statements



Statement of net
position
Statement
of activities

Accounting basis
and measurement
focus

Accrual accounting
and
economic resources
focus

Type of
asset/liability
information

All assets and
liabilities,
both financial and
capital,
short-term and longterm

Type of
inflow/outflow
information

All revenues and
expenses during
year,
regardless of when
cash
is received or paid

Proprietary Funds

Governmental
Funds
The activities of the
City
that are not
proprietary or
fiduciary

Activities the City
operates similar to private
businesses.

 Balance sheet



 Statement
of
revenues,
expenditures
and changes
in fund balances

 Statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in
net position

Modified accrual
accounting and
current
financial resources
focus
Only assets expected
to
be used up and
liabilities
that come due
during the
year or soon
thereafter,
no capital assets
included

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Revenues for which
cash
is received during or
soon
after the end of the
year;
expenditures when
goods
or services have
been
received and
payment is
due during the year
or
soon thereafter

All revenues and
expenses during year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid



Statement of net position

Statement of cash flows

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and longterm
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
September 30, 2018

Government-wide Statements. The government-wide statements report information about the City as a
whole using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net
Position includes all of the government’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement
of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.
The two government-wide statements report the City’s net position and how they have changed. Net
position, the difference between the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources of resources, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resources, is one way to measure the City’s financial health.


Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are an indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating.



To assess the overall health of the City, you need to consider additional non-financial
factors such as changes in the City’s tax base.

The government-wide financial statements of the City include the governmental activities and businesstype activities. The City’s basic services, such as general government, public safety, highways and streets,
economic development, and parks and recreation, are included in governmental activities on the
government-wide statements. Property taxes, sales taxes, fees for service, and grants finance most of these
activities. Business-type activities encompass the operating and non-operating activities of the City’s
water, sewer and sanitation services.
Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the
City’s most significant funds—not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to
keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.
The City has two types of funds:
Governmental funds—The City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (1)
how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the
balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental fund statements
provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. Because this information does
not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional
information on the subsequent page that explain the relationship (or differences) between them. The
governmental funds encompass the General fund, the Capital Projects fund, the Type A Economic
Development Corporation, the Type B Business Development Corporation, the Debt Service fund, the
Grants fund, and the Community Activities fund, which includes funds donated by citizens and other
interested parties to pay for special projects.
Proprietary funds (business type activities)—This fund includes services for which the City charges
customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide
statements, provide both long- and short-term financial information.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
September 30, 2018
Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole

Net Position. The City’s combined net position was $12,990,464 at September 30, 2018.
Statement of Net Position for Governmental and Business-Type Activities

Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total assets

Governmental
Activities
2018

Business-type
Activities
2018

$

$

Deferred outflows of resources
Current liabilities
Long term liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

2,781,817
15,407,794
18,189,611

2,139,384
6,221,758
8,361,142

Governmental
Activities
2017

Total
2018

$

4,921,201
21,629,552
26,550,753

$

1,379,113
13,665,167
15,044,280

Business-type
Activities
2017

$

2,962,112
5,828,464
8,790,576

Total
2017

$

4,341,225
19,493,631
23,834,856

188,492

73,301

261,793

624,272

72,739

697,011

861,098
8,004,555
8,865,653

602,586
3,774,435
4,377,021

1,463,684
11,778,990
13,242,674

1,629,167
5,920,185
7,549,352

436,091
3,847,693
4,283,784

2,065,258
9,767,878
11,833,136

417,173

162,234

579,407

123,160

15,501

138,661

2,646,758
1,248,430
3,895,188

10,796,413
1,661,259
532,793
12,990,465

8,149,655
1,661,259
(715,637)
9,095,277

$

$

$

9,969,447
563,805
(2,537,212)
7,996,040

$

2,103,821
224,263
2,235,946
4,564,030

12,073,268
788,068
(301,266)
12,560,070

$

By far, the largest portion of the City’s net position (80%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery, equipment, vehicles and infrastructure), less any related outstanding debt that
was used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide a variety of services to its
citizens. Accordingly, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment
in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources used to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.
An additional portion of the City’s net position (12.8%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $532,793 is unrestricted and may be
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.
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Revenues and Expenses for Governmental and Business-Type Activities

Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contribution
Capital grants and contributions

Governmental
Activities
2018

Business-type
Activities
2018

$

$

487,390
432,795
205,856

3,583,112
-

Total
2018

$

4,070,502
432,795
205,856

Governmental
Activities
2017

Business-type
Activities
2017

$

$

803,515
249,491
-

Total
2017

3,406,146
-

$

4,209,661
249,491
-

General Revenues:
Taxes and fees
Other
Total revenues

3,325,605
830,840
5,282,486

(205,856)
3,377,256

3,325,605
624,984
8,659,742

2,937,838
234,654
4,225,498

167,520
3,573,666

2,937,838
402,174
7,799,164

Expenses
General government
Public safety
Fire and rescue
Streets
Parks and recreation
Municipal court
Economic development
Community development
Interest and fiscal charges
Water
Sewer
Sanitation
Loss from disposal of capital assets
Total expenses

1,206,850
1,162,752
984,202
606,676
37,135
104,868
92,341
234,280
176,015
8,059
4,613,177

146,061
2,043,349
913,573
292,007
3,394,990

1,206,850
1,162,752
984,202
606,676
37,135
104,868
92,341
234,280
322,076
2,043,349
913,573
292,007
8,059
8,000,108

705,280
1,815,794
1,187,525
857,303
36,682
256,758
91,445
127,716
44,188
5,122,691

163,448
2,066,889
752,346
317,130
3,299,813

705,280
1,815,794
1,187,525
857,303
36,682
256,758
91,445
127,716
207,636
2,066,889
752,346
317,130
8,422,504

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Before Transfers

669,309

(17,734)

651,575

213,724

(213,724)

-

883,033

(231,458)

651,575

Transfers
Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Previously Reported

7,996,040

4,564,030

(897,193)

273,853

-

-

(897,193)

12,560,070

(623,340)
-

273,853

8,893,233

(623,340)

4,290,177

13,183,410

Change in Accounting Principle (Note 11 )

(85,619)

(33,296)

(118,915)

-

-

-

Correction of Error (Note 11 )

301,823

(404,088)

(102,265)

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,212,244

Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Resteted
Net Position, End of Year

$

9,095,277

4,126,646
$

3,895,188

12,338,890
$

12,990,465

$

7,996,040

$

4,564,030

$

Change in Net Position. The City’s total revenues were $8,659,742 and total expenses were $8,000,108
resulting in an increase in net position of $651,574 for the year ended September 30, 2018. This increase
results from a significant decrease in spending, mainly personnel costs, due to reorganization within the City’s
administrative departments.
In 2018 the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Additonally,
several error corrections were made to the governmental-activties, business-type activities, and the
Community Activity Fund as identified in Note 11. Prior year comparative information contained herein
has not been restated for the adoption of GASB 75 or error corrections.
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Capital Assets. The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2018, amount to $21,629,552 (net of accumulated depreciation). This net investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings, park facilities, machinery and equipment, roads, and water, sewer,
and sanitation lines.
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:


Completion of Municipal Center of approximately $2,300,000.



Various improvements on Shady Oak Road of approximately $205,000.



Water meter replacements of approximately $170,000.

Additional information on capital asset activity can be found in Note 6 of this report.
Governmental
Activities
2018

Land
Construction in progress
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Streets
Infrastructure
Office funiture and equipment
Vehicles
Accumulated depreciation
Total

Business-type
Activities

Totals

2018

2017

2018

2017

2017

$

1,693,121
383,233
6,794,268
616,997
9,834,981
1,210,136
630,035
1,646,500
(7,401,477)

$

1,566,875
3,935,135
1,970,416
1,010,320
9,834,981
544,940
96,984
1,674,412
(6,968,896)

$

192,622
11,999
205,118
357,194
16,261,896
63,783
211,319
(11,082,173)

$

229,593
278,605
227,900
214,895
15,339,491
19,067
268,198
(10,749,285)

$

1,885,743
395,232
6,999,386
974,191
9,834,981
17,472,032
693,818
1,857,819
(18,483,650)

$

1,796,468
4,213,740
2,198,316
1,225,215
9,834,981
15,884,431
116,051
1,942,610
(17,718,181)

$

15,407,794

$

13,665,167

$

6,221,758

$

5,828,464

$

21,629,552

$

19,493,631

Long-Term Obligations. At year-end, the City had $11,262,040 in total outstanding long-term
obligations (including current portion) as shown below.
Additional information on long-term debt activity can be found in Note 7 of this report.
Governmental
Activities
2018

Bonds payable
Notes payable
Capital lease
Total

Business-type
Activities
2018

2017

Totals
2018

2017

2017

$

6,833,823
813,448
39,768

$

2,813,873
881,847
-

$

3,575,000
-

$

3,650,000
-

$

10,408,823
813,448
39,768

$

6,463,873
881,847
-

$

7,687,039

$

3,695,720

$

3,575,000

$

3,650,000

$

11,262,039

$

7,345,720
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds
General Fund Highlights. The General Fund balance increased by $179,337, from $526,889 to
$706,226. This increase can be attributed to a significant decrease in personnel costs due to
reorganization within the administrative departments.
Capital Projects Fund. The Capital Projects Fund balance increased by $2,030,880 from a deficit of
$1,038,228 to fund balance of $992,652. This increase can be attributed to an increase in the issuance
of debt for the completion of the municipal center and various capital improvements offset by the
expenditures associated with completion of the municipal center and various capital improvement
during the year.
Type A Economic Development. The fund balance increased by $5,902, from ($40,690) to ($34,788),
due to an increase in sales tax collections coupled with a decrease in non-debt service expenditures.
Type B Business Development. The fund balance increased by $53,583, from $350,475 to $404,058,
due to an increase in sales tax collections coupled with a decrease in expenditures, primarily related to
capital outlay.
Debt Service. The fund balance increased by $206,533, from $52 to $206,585, due to unspent bond
proceeds from the 2016 bond to construct the new City Hall building.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
General fund revenues exceeded expenditures by $259,146. After considering transfers to/from other
funds, proceeds from capital lease, and proceeds from sale of capital assets, the fund balance for the
City’s general fund is $706,226 as of September 30, 2018, which was $338,925 more than the budgeted
change in fund balance. This difference between budgeted and actual can be attributed to
reorganization within the administrative departments.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
The proposed tax rate for the upcoming year will remain the same at $0.897823 per $100 with a
budgeted increase in property tax revenue of $146,361. Sales tax collections are budgeted for a
increase of $29,805. General fund revenue budgeted for next year totals $4,468,452 for an increase of
$31,013 in the upcoming year.
Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability
for the funds it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial
information, please contact the Finance Director via e-mail at finance.director@keenetx.com or via
mail at 1000 N. Old Betsy Road, Keene, TX 76031.

10

DRAFT

Basic Financial Statements

DRAFT

This Page Intentionally Left Blank

DRAFT
City of Keene, Texas
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2018

Governmental
Activities
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Prepaid items
Inventory
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets
Nondepreciable assets
Depreciable assets, net

$

Total assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources - Pension
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB
Total deferred outflows of resources
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued interest
Accrued payable liabilities
Other payables
Unearned revenue
Customer deposits
Current portion of long term debt:
Notes payable
Capital lease
Bonds payable
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Notes payable
Capital lease
Bonds payable
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources - Pension
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Debt service
Capital projects
Child safety
Court security
Court technology
Juvenile case management
City promotions
Economic development
Unrestricted
Total net position

2,456,828
302,712
4,421
17,856
-

Primary Government
Business-type
Activities
$

$

3,844,048
801,653
4,421
17,856
253,223

2,076,354
13,331,440

204,621
6,017,137

2,280,975
19,348,577

18,189,611

8,361,142

26,550,753

179,844
8,648
188,492

69,939
3,362
73,301

249,783
12,010
261,793

238,756
18,102
103,400
29,038
17,631
-

222,585
4,225
18,585
23,968
253,223

461,341
4,225
36,687
127,368
29,038
17,631
253,223

135,526
19,686
298,959
861,098

80,000
602,586

135,526
19,686
378,959
1,463,684

677,922
20,082
6,534,864
114,295
555,227
102,165
8,004,555

3,495,000
23,784
215,920
39,731
3,774,435

677,922
20,082
10,029,864
138,079
771,147
141,896
11,778,990

8,865,653

4,377,021

13,242,674

417,173
417,173

162,234
162,234

579,407
579,407

8,149,655

2,646,758

10,796,413

1,248,430

206,585
992,652
8,419
5,000
3,006
1,685
39,854
404,058
532,793

206,585
992,652
8,419
5,000
3,006
1,685
39,854
404,058
(715,637)
$

1,387,220
498,941
253,223

Total

9,095,277

$

3,895,188

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$

12,990,465
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Program Revenues

Functions/program
Primary government
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Fire and rescue
Streets
Parks and recreation
Municipal court
Economic development
Community development
Interest and fiscal charges
Total governmental activities

$

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Sanitation
Interest on long-term debt
Total business-type activities
Total primary government

1,206,850
1,162,752
984,202
606,676
37,135
104,868
92,341
234,280
176,015
4,605,118

$

2,043,349
913,573
292,007
146,061
3,394,990
$

8,000,108

Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Charges for
Services

Expenses

65,818
180,524
2,662
238,387
487,390

$

4,070,502

Capital Grants
and
Contributions

432,795
432,795

2,305,560
994,041
283,511
3,583,112
$

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

$

205,856
205,856

$

432,795

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

$

$

$

205,856

General revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Miscellaneous
Loss from disposal of capital assets
Interest income
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

(935,176)
(1,162,752)
(370,883)
(606,676)
(34,473)
133,519
(92,341)
(234,280)
(176,015)
(3,479,077)

-

-

Total

$

262,211
80,468
(8,496)
(146,061)
188,122

-

(935,176)
(1,162,752)
(370,883)
(606,676)
(34,473)
133,519
(92,341)
(234,280)
(176,015)
(3,479,077)

262,211
80,468
(8,496)
(146,061)
188,122

$

(3,479,077)

$

188,122

$

(3,290,955)

$

1,933,572
839,206
552,827
816,513
(8,059)
14,327
213,724
4,362,110

$

(205,856)
(213,724)
(419,580)

$

1,933,572
839,206
552,827
610,657
(8,059)
14,327
3,942,530

Change in net position

883,033

Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Previously Reported

(231,458)

7,996,040

651,575

4,564,030

12,560,070

Change in Accounting Principle (Note 11 )

(85,619)

(33,296)

(118,915)

Correction of Error (Note 11 )

301,823

(404,088)

(102,265)

Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Restated
Net Position, End of Year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

8,212,244
$

9,095,277

4,126,646
$

3,895,188

12,338,890
$

12,990,465
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Type A
Economic
Development
Corporation

Capital
Projects
Fund

General
Fund

Type B
Business
Development
Corporation

Total
Nonmajor

Debt
Service
Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

Funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibles):
Property taxes
Sales tax
Ambulance receivable
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid items
Inventory

$

Total assets

420,684

$

1,134,960

$

260,385

$

387,918

$

206,281

$

46,600

$

2,456,828

77,939
75,500
59,240
1,713
357,286
3,426
17,856

-

37,750
-

37,750
-

4,820
-

8,000
10,000
995
-

82,759
151,000
59,240
9,713
367,286
4,421
17,856

1,013,644

1,134,960

298,135

425,668

211,101

65,595

3,149,103

90,831
103,400
28,438
11,855

141,708
600
-

611
332,312
-

4,636
16,974
-

-

970
18,000
5,776

238,756
103,400
29,038
367,286
17,631

234,524

142,308

332,923

21,610

-

24,746

756,111

72,894

-

-

-

4,516

-

77,410

21,282

-

-

-

-

995

22,277

8,419
5,000
3,006
1,685
666,834
706,226

992,652
992,652

404,058
404,058

206,585
206,585

39,854
40,849

206,585
992,652
8,419
5,000
3,006
1,685
39,854
404,058
632,046
2,315,582

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Fund Balances (Deficit)
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll liabilities
Other payables
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources - unavailable revenue
Fund balances (deficit)
Nonspendable for inventory and prepaid items
Restricted for
Debt service
Capital projects
Child safety
Court security
Court technology
Juvenile case management
City promotions
Economic development
Unassigned
Total fund balances (deficit)
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances (deficit)

$

1,013,644

$

1,134,960

(34,788)
(34,788)

$

298,135

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

425,668

$

211,101

$

65,595

$
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Total fund balances – governmental funds

$

2,315,582

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position are different because:
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governmental activities are not
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the fund financial statements.

15,407,794

Revenues earned but not available within 60 days of the year-end are not
recognized as revenue on the fund financial statements.

77,410

Interest payable on long-term debt in the City's governmental activities is not payable
from current resources and, therefore, is not reported in the fund financial statements.

(18,102)

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources represent
flows of resources which relate to future periods and, therefore, are not
reported in the fund financial statements. Deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources at year-end consist of:
179,844
8,648
(417,173)

Deferred outflows of resources (Pension)
Deferred outflows of resources (OPEB)
Deferred inflows of resources (Pension)
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the fund financial statements.
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

(6,833,823)
(813,448)
(39,768)
(555,227)
(114,295)
(102,165)

Bond payable
Notes payable
Capital lease
Net pension liability
Compensated absences
Total OPEB liability
Total net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$

9,095,277
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Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses, permits and filing fees
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Other revenues
Administrative allocation
Operating grants and contributions
Total revenues

$

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Public safety
Fire and rescue
Streets
Parks and recreation
Municipal court
Economic development
Community development
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
before other financing sources (uses)

General

Capital
Projects

Type A
Economic
Development

Type B
Business
Development

Debt
Service

Total
Nonmajor

Total
Governmental

Fund

Fund

Corporation

Corporation

Fund

Funds

Funds

1,886,598
419,602
552,827
43,068
344,005
100,317
10,816
97,093
703,612
307,847
4,465,785

$

702,816
702,816

$

209,802
1,471
1,791
213,064

$

209,802
2,040
1,131
212,973

1,472,740
1,244,431
971,817
230,600
34,450
114,687
137,914

2,743,330

81,025
49,899

137,901
-

4,206,639

2,743,330

50,498
25,740
207,162

$

112,282
33,333
145,615

$

12,887
91,615
104,502

$

1,998,880
839,206
552,827
43,068
344,005
100,317
14,327
815,718
703,612
432,795
5,844,755

-

8,158
33,755
2,887
59,702

1,472,740
1,252,589
1,005,572
230,600
34,450
114,687
81,025
140,788
2,990,845

19,340
2,149
159,390

161,212
154,404
315,616

104,502

231,050
182,293
7,736,639

(170,001)

-

(1,891,884)

259,146

(2,040,514)

5,902

53,583

39,768
5,613
21,854
(147,044)
(79,809)

4,109,014
99,321
(136,941)
4,071,394

-

-

376,534
376,534

-

4,109,014
39,768
5,613
497,709
(283,985)
4,368,119

Net Change in Fund Balances

179,337

2,030,880

5,902

53,583

206,533

-

2,476,235

Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year, as Previously Reported

526,889

(1,038,228)

(40,690)

350,475

52

35,705

-

-

5,144

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt
Capital lease
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Correction of Error (Note 11 )

-

Fund Balances (Deficit), Beginning of Year, as Restated
Fund Balances (Deficit), End of Year

-

526,889
$

706,226

-

(1,038,228)
$

992,652

(40,690)
$

(34,788)

350,475
$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

404,058

52
$

206,585

(165,797)
5,144

40,849
$

40,849

(160,653)
$

15

2,315,582
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Net change in fund balances – total governmental funds

$

2,476,235

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital assets recorded in the
current period.

2,941,143

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the statement of activities but does
not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is
not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

(649,410)

Governmental funds do not recognize contributed capital assets. However, in the
statement of activities the fair market value of those assets are recognized as revenue,
then allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

205,856

The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e. disposals/sales)
and reimbursement from the business type activities for assets purchased in prior years
is to decrease net position.

(710,875)

Current year principal payments of long-term liabilities are shown as expenditures in
the fund financial statements, but shown as reductions in long-term liabilities in the
government-wide financial statements as follows:
Bonds payable
Notes payable

89,064
141,986

Current year issuances of long-term debt and capital lease transactions are reported as
other financing sources in the fund financial statements, but are shown as increases in
long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements

(4,148,782)

Current year pension expenditures are reported on the fiscal year basis on the governmental
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance and as actuarially
determined in the government-wide statement of activities. These differences are
reflected in net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources balances.

627,802

Current year change in long-term liabilities for compensated absences and total OPEB liability
do not require the use of current financial resources; therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

(25,343)

Current year change in accrued interest payable does not require the use of current
financial resources; therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

6,280

Certain revenues in the government-wide statement of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds.
This is the net change in these revenues for the year.
Change in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

(70,923)

$

883,033
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Water,
Sewer, and
Sanitation

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Customer receivables, net
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

$

Total current assets

1,387,220
498,941
253,223
2,139,384

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets
Nondepreciable
Depreciable (net of accumulated depreciation)

204,621
6,017,137

Total noncurrent assets

6,221,758

Total assets

8,361,142

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources - Pension
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB
Total deferred outflows of resources

69,939
3,362
73,301

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows or Resources and
Net Position
Current Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Intergovernmental payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued payable liabilities
Customer deposits
Current portion long-term debt:
Bonds payable

222,585
4,225
18,585
23,968
253,223
80,000

Total current liabilities

602,586

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability

3,495,000
23,784
215,920
39,731

Total noncurrent liabilities

3,774,435

Total liabilities

4,377,021

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources - Pension
Total deferred outflows of resources

162,234
162,234

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

2,646,758
1,248,430
$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

3,895,188
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Water,
Sewer, and
Sanitation
Operating Revenues
Charges for services:
Water
Wastewater
Sanitation
Other

$

Total operating revenues

3,583,112

Operating Expenses
Personnel services
Contracted services
Administrative
Water purchases
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Permits and fees
Materials and supplies
Depreciation

341,926
351,220
735,292
666,932
136,504
146,325
313,496
145,455
411,779

Total operating expenses

3,248,929

Operating Income

334,183

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest expense

(146,061)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

(146,061)

Income before capital contributions and transfers

188,122

Capital contribution to governmental activities
Transfers

(205,856)
(213,724)

Change in Net Position

(231,458)

Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Previously Reported

4,564,030

Change in Accounting Principle (Note 11 )

(33,296)

Correction of Error (Note 11 )

(404,088)

Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Restated
Net Position, End of Year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

1,864,511
994,041
283,511
441,049

4,126,646
$

3,895,188
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Water and
Sewer Fund

Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

$ 3,581,033
(571,470)
(2,339,266)

Net cash provided by operating activities

670,297

Noncapital and Related Financing Activities
Transfers in
Transfers out

96,798
(231,767)

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities

(134,969)

Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal payments on debt
Interest payments on debt

(1,020,131)
(75,000)
(150,072)

Net cash used in capital and financing activities

(1,245,203)

Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(709,875)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

2,350,318

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

$ 1,640,443

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income

$

Item not requiring cash
Depreciation

411,779

Changes in
Accounts receivable
Deferred outflows of resources
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Customer deposits
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Compensated absences
Deferred inflows of resources
Net cash provided by operating activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

334,183

(31,039)
283
155,958
5,674
28,960
(400,678)
5,590
12,854
146,733
$

670,297
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Note 1:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Keene, Texas (City) is a Home Rule city which citizens elect the mayor and six council
members. The Mayor is elected by the citizens at large. Council positions consist of 3 Ward
Positions and 3 At Large Positions. The 3 At Large positions are elected at large by citizens, the 3
Ward positions are voted by the citizens in the Ward. The candidate running for a Ward position
must live in that Ward. The City operates under the Council-Manager form of government and
provides such services as are authorized by its charter to advance the welfare, health, comfort,
safety, and convenience of the City and its inhabitants.
The accounting and reporting policies of the City relating to the funds included in the
accompanying basic financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP) applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted
accounting principles for local governments include those principles prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more significant accounting policies of
the City are described as follows:
Reporting Entity
The City's basic financial statements include all activities, organizations, and functions for which
the City is considered to be financially accountable. The criteria considered in determining
activities to be reported within the City’s basic financial statements include whether:


the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name)



the City holds the corporate powers of the organization



the City appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board



the City is able to impose its will on the organization



the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City



there is a fiscal dependency by the organization of the City

The above criteria was applied to potential organizations to determine if the entity should be
reported as part of the City. The following were determined to be blended component units of the
City.
Keene Economic Development Corporation (KEDC) is a blended component unit. The KEDC was
formed to promote economic development within the City and the State of Texas in order to
eliminate unemployment and underemployment, and to promote and encourage employment and
the public welfare of, and on behalf of, the City by developing, implementing, providing and
financing projects under the Development Corporation Act of 1979 as defined in Section 4A of the
Act. A Board of Directors, whose members are appointed by and serve the City’s governing body,
makes the decisions regarding use of local revenue in undertaking projects, though the City retains
oversight authority and must approve all programs and expenditures of the Corporation. KEDC is
presented as a major fund on the City’s governmental fund financial statements.
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Keene Business Development Corporation (KBDC), formally known as the Keene Community
Development Corporation, is a blended component unit. The KBDC was formed exclusively for
the purposes of benefiting and accomplishing public purposes of, and acting on behalf of, the City
in promotion and development of public projects, including, but not limited to, tourism facilities,
civic center, downtown/main street renovation and/or development, drainage and related
improvements, parks, youth center, sports facilities, public safety facilities, municipal facilities,
library facilities, water, sewer and street extensions, any other project that the Board determines as
contributing to the promotion or development of new or expanded business enterprises and other
related improvements, and any other project authorized under Section 4B of the Development Act
of 1979.
A Board of Directors, whose members are appointed by and serve the City’s governing body,
makes all decisions regarding use of local revenue in undertaking projects, though the City retains
oversight authority and must approve all programs and expenditures of the Corporation. KBDC is
presented as a major fund on the City’s Governmental Fund financial statements.
Basis of Presentation
The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and
fund financial statements.
Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government. As a general rule,
the effect of inter-fund activity, with the exception of interfund services provided or used, within
the governmental or business-type activities columns, has been eliminated from these statements.
Elimination of the interfund services provided or used would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions concerned. Governmental activities, which normally
are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely on fees and charges for support.
The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of a given program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or program. Program revenues include (1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or program, and (2) operating or capital grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or program.
Taxes and other items properly not included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.
The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds in order
to aid in financial management and to demonstrate compliance with various legal provisions.
Separate fund-based financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the proprietary
fund. These statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial
statements, all non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column on the fund
financial statements. The non-major funds are detailed in the combining section of the statements.
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Governmental funds are those funds through which most government functions are typically
financed. The measurement focus of government funds is on the sources, uses and balances of
current financial resources. GASB Statement No. 34 set forth minimum criteria (percentage of
assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category for the governmental
and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds.
The City has presented the following major governmental funds:
General Fund – Governmental fund that reports as the primary fund of the City. This fund is used
to account for all financial resources not reported in any other funds.
Debt Service Fund – Governmental fund which accounts for the accumulation of financial
resources for the payment of principal and interest on the City’s debt. The City has designated the
Debt Service Fund as a major fund.
Type A Economic Development Corporation – Governmental fund which accounts for the
accumulation of financial resources for KEDC.
Type B Business Development Corporation – Governmental fund which accounts for the
accumulation of financial resources for KBDC. The City has designated the Type B Business
Development Corporation as a major fund.
Capital Projects Fund – Governmental fund which accounts for amounts received and expended for
the construction of the municipal complex, community center, and other improvements.
Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, financial
position and cash flow. All assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources,
and liabilities are included on the statement of net position. The City has presented the following
proprietary fund:
Water, Sewer and Sanitation Fund – Enterprise fund which accounts for the operating activities of
the City’s water, sewer, and sanitation services.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the personal and contractual services, cost of sales and services, administrative expenses
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting
The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus refers to the type of resources being measured,
such as current financial resources or economic resources; basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.
Basis of accounting relates to the timing of transactions of the measurement made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.
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The government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
The economic resources method measurement focus means all assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources (whether current or noncurrent) are
included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position and the operating statement presents
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net position. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned, including water and wastewater services, which
are accrued. Expenses are recognized at the time a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis
of accounting, revenues are recognized when they are susceptible to accrual; i.e., when they are
both measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers property taxes and other revenues as
available if they are collected within 60 days of the fiscal year-end. Expenditures are recorded
when the related fund liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences, and other long-term liabilities, are recorded only
when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported
as other financing sources.
The revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, gross receipts tax, licenses, charges for
services, fines and fees, interest income and intergovernmental revenues. Sales taxes collected and
held by the state at year-end on behalf of the City are also recognized as revenue. Expendituredriven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and
all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received during the period or
within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year-end). All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government, as they are deemed immaterial.
The proprietary fund types are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprise. The costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the
general public on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.
Periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred or net income is appropriate for
capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.
Amounts reported as program revenues include: (1) charges to customers for goods and services,
(2) operating grants and contributions and (3) capital grants and contributions. All taxes, including
those dedicated for specific purposes and other internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues.
.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand and demand deposits.
Substantially all operating deposits are maintained in pooled deposits accounts. Interest income
relating to pooled deposits is allocated to the participating individual funds based on each fund’s
pro rata share of total pooled deposits and investments. For the purpose of the statement of cash
flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments to be cash equivalents.
Capital Assets
The City’s capital assets and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year are stated at
historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements. The
City maintains infrastructure asset records consistent with all other capital assets. Proprietary
capital assets are also reported in their respective fund. Donated assets are stated at acquisition
value on the date donated. The City generally capitalizes assets with a cost of $5,000 or more as
purchases and outlays occur. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using
the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated
depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded in
operations.
Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment
Building improvements
Infrastructure
Buildings

5
5 to 10
20
30
40

years
years
years
years
years

The City has elected to early implement GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost
Incurred before the End of a Construction Period (GASB 89). As a result, the interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a
capital asset reported in the business-type activities or Water, Sewer and Sanitation Fund.
Other Assets
Inventory is stated at cost using the first-in, first-out method. Inventory consists of expendable
parts, fuel and supplies. Inventories are recorded as expenses when consumed. Certain payments to
vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.
Interfund Activity
Inter-fund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds.
Loans are reported as inter-fund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to
elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are
treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a
cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All
other inter-fund transactions are treated as transfers.
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Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has the following items that quality for
reporting in this category:


Difference in expected and actual experience – pension – This difference is deferred and
amortized over the estimated average remaining service life of all participants in the pension
plan determined as of the beginning of the measurement period.



Changes in actuarial assumptions related to the pension and OPEB plans – This difference is
deferred and recognized over the estimated average remaining lives of all members
determined as of the beginning of the measurement period.



Pension and OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date – These contributions are
deferred and recognized in the following fiscal year.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position or balance sheet will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then. The City has the following items that
qualify for reporting in this category:


Unavailable revenue – This amount represents uncollected property taxes. This amount is
deferred and recognized once payments are received in the follow fiscal year. This item is
only presented in the Balance Sheet –Governmental Funds.



Difference in expected and actual experience – pension – This difference is deferred and
amortized over the estimated average remaining service life of all participants in the pension
plan determined as of the beginning of the measurement period.



Difference in projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments – This difference is
deferred and amortized as a component of pension expense on a closed basis over a five year
period determined as of the beginning of the measurement period.

Long-Term Liabilities
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net position.
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Compensated Absences
Compensated absences are reported as liabilities in the government-wide financial statements. In
the fund level financial statements, only matured compensated absences payable to currently
terminating employees is reported. The general fund is used to liquidate the compensated absences
liability.
Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, pension related deferred outflows and
inflows of resources and pension expense, City specific information about its Fiduciary Net
Position in the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from
the City’s Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation
is reported for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments
and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value. Information regarding the City’s Net Pension Liability is
obtained from TMRS through a report prepared for the City by TMRS consulting actuary,
Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company.
Defined Benefit Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
The City has a single-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan (Plan).
For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB and OPEB expense have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Fund Balance Policies and Classifications
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance into classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the
specific purpose for which amount in those funds can be spent. The classifications of fund balance
are Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned and Unassigned.
Nonspendable fund balance – Includes the portion of net resources that cannot be spent
because of their form (i.e. inventory, long-term loans or prepaids) or because they must
remain intact such as the principal of an endowment.
Restricted fund balance – Includes the portion of net resources on which limitations are
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or by laws or regulations of other governments
(i.e. externally imposed limitations). Amounts can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by external resource providers or as allowed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.
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Committed fund balance – Includes the portion of net resources upon which Council has
imposed limitations on use. Amounts can be used only for the specific purposes determined
by a formal action of the council. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the Council
taking the same formal action that originally imposed the constraint. The formal action must
be approved before the end of the fiscal year in which the commitment will be reflected on the
financial statements.
Assigned fund balance – Includes the portion of net resources for which an intended use has
been established by the City Council or the City Official authorized to do so by the City
Council. Assignments of fund balance are much less formal than commitments and do not
require formal action for their imposition or removal. In governmental funds other than the
general fund, assigned fund balance represents the amount that is not restricted or committed
which indicates that resources are, at a minimum, intended to be used for the purpose of that
fund.
Unassigned fund balance – Includes the amounts in the general fund in excess of what can
properly be classified in one of the other four categories of fund balance. It is the residual
classification of the general fund and includes all amounts not contained in other
classifications. Only the General Fund will have unassigned amounts. In all other funds,
unassigned is limited to negative residual fund balance.
It is the City’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of
the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund
balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by
assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.
Net Position
Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources of governmental and business-type activities and proprietary funds.
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation.
Net position is categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.
Net Investment in Capital Assets – This category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the
outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.
Restricted Net Position – This category represents net position that have external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Unrestricted Net Position – The category represents net position of the City, not restricted for any
project.
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts reported as restricted – net position
and unrestricted net-position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements,
a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be
applied.
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It is the City’s policy to consider restricted-net position to have been depleted before
unrestricted-net position is applied.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires the City’s management to make estimates and assumptions that effect reported
amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at
the date of the financial statements and the reported changes in net position during the reporting
period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Note 2:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The City's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract.
The depository bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the City's agent bank approved
pledged securities in an amount sufficient to protect City funds on a day-to-day basis during the
period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of the
depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance.
Cash Deposits

At September 30, 2018, the total carrying amounts of the City's deposits including restricted and
unrestricted cash and money market accounts were $3,448,968 and the bank balances were
$3,573,935. While there were days which the bank balance exceeded FDIC coverage during the year,
the City's cash deposits at September 30, 2018 were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by
pledged collateral held by the City's agent bank in the City's name.
At September 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the Type A Economic Development Corporation and
Type B Business Development Corporation deposits was $648,303 and the bank balance was
$649,554. While there were days which the bank balance exceeded FDIC coverage during the year,
the Component Units’ cash deposits at September 30, 2018 were entirely covered by FDIC
insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City's agent bank in the City's name.
The City’s deposits were covered by FDIC coverage of $250,000 for each ownership category
for each financial institution. The remaining bank balance of $3,473,489 was covered by collateral
of $5,225,406.
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give
an indication of credit risk. At year end, the City was not exposed to a significant amount of credit
risk.
Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the
deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
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institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust
department or agent but not in the City's name.
Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not
registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the
counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the City's name. At year end, the City was not
exposed to custodial credit risk
Concentration of Credit Risk

This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer.
At year- end, the City was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.
Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At
year- end, the City was not exposed to interest rate risk.
Investment Accounting Policy

The City's general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating
interest- earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interestearning investment contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an
investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other
factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal
contract exists which guarantees a higher value. Short-term investments are those which have a
remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating" means that the
investment's value does not vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of
deposit are examples of nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts. The City had no
investments as of September 30, 2018.

Note 3:

Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the City’s individual major funds and non-major funds in the
aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Capital
Projects

General
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Court fines
Ambulance

$

Gross receivables
Less: allowance for uncollectibles
Net total receivables

215,773
1,713
59,240

$

276,726
(62,334)
$

214,392

-

Type A
Economic
Development
Corporation

Type B
Business
Development
Corporation

$

$

$

-

37,750
37,750
-

$

37,750

37,750
-

Debt
Service

$

37,750
$

37,750

10,470
-

Nonmajor
Governmental Funds

$

10,470
(5,650)
$

4,820

8,000
-

Total

$

8,000
$

8,000
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Note 4:

Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of October 1. Taxes are levied on
October 1, and are due and payable on or before January 31, of the following year. All unpaid
taxes become delinquent February 1, of the following year. Tax collections for the year ended
September 30, 2018, were 98% of the levy. Johnson County bills and collects property taxes for
the City. Any uncollected property taxes at September 30, that are collected within 60 days is
recognized as revenue and recorded as taxes receivable. Any uncollected property taxes at
September 30, which are not expected to be collected within 60 days, are recorded as taxes
receivable and deferred inflow of resources in governmental funds. Anticipated refunds of such
taxes are recorded as liabilities and reductions of revenue when they are measurable and their
validity seems certain.
For the year ended September 30, 2018, the City had a tax rate of $.8978 per $100.00 assessed
valuation, of which $.8472 was allocated for general government and $.0506 was allocated for the
payment of principal and interest on general obligation debt.
In Texas, county-wide central appraisal districts are required to assess all property within the
appraisal district on the basis of 100% of its appraised value and are prohibited from applying any
assessment ratios. The value of property within the appraisal district must be reviewed every three
years; however, the City may, at its own expense, require annual reviews of appraised values.
The City may challenge appraised values established by the appraisal district through various
appeals and, if necessary, legal action. Under this legislation, the City continues to set tax rates on
City property.
However, if the effective tax rate, excluding tax rates for bonds and other contractual obligations,
adjusted for new improvements, exceeds the tax rate for the previous year by more than 8%,
qualified voters of the City may petition for an election to determine whether to limit the tax rate to
no more than 8% above the tax rate of the previous year. This legislation provides that, if approved
by the qualified voters in the City, both the appraisal and collection functions may be placed with
the appraisal district. In addition, the City may obtain approval from its governing body to place
these functions with the appraisal district.
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Note 5:

Interfund Balances and Activity

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2018 is as follows:
Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Grants Fund

Payable Fund
Type A Economic Development Corporation
Type B Business Development Corporation
Grant Fund
Type B Business Development Corporation

Amount
$

332,312
6,974
18,000
10,000

$

367,286

Transfer to and from other funds at September 30, 2018 consisted of the following:
Transfers in/transfers out:
Transfer In
General Fund
Debt Service Fund
Debt Service Fund
Debt Service Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Water, Sewer & Sanitation Fund

Transfer Out
Water, Sewer & Sanitation Fund
General Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Water, Sewer & Sanitation Fund
General Fund
General Fund

Amount
$

21,854
29,680
136,941
209,913
99,321
18,043

$

515,752
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Note 6:

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity in the governmental activities for the year ended September 30, 2018, was as
follows:
10/1/2017
Balance, As Restated
Governmental Activities
Land
Construction in progress

$

Total capital assets not being
depreciated
Capital assets being
depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Parks and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Office furniture and equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Streets
Total capital assets
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation:

1,643,222
3,923,135

Increases

$

Total capital assets being
depreciated (net)

306,463

449,267
914,929
590,916
327,272
1,710,326
1,210,136
9,834,981

2,130,566
54,476
358,239
91,399
-

15,037,827

2,634,680

$

13,626,695

$

$

-

$

$

$

(28,395)
(55,476)
(155,225)
-

3,299,506
-

5,879,339
914,929
616,997
630,035
1,646,500
1,210,136
9,834,981

(239,096)

3,299,506

20,732,917

-

(13,674)

(7,401,477)

3,299,506
$

(496,960)

13,331,440
$

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the governmental activities of the
primary government as follows:
Governmental activities
General and administrative
Public safety
Fire and rescue
Streets
Parks and recreation
Community development and recreation
Economic development
Total depreciation expense - governmental
activities

1,693,121
383,233

2,076,354

(13,674)

2,291,733

(3,796,466)

(3,796,466)

225,422

1,985,270

9/30/2018
Balance

Transfers

-

(649,410)

8,060,338

Governmental activities capital assets,
net

49,899
256,564

5,566,357

(6,977,489)

Decreases

$

13,783
82,591
94,045
387,103
2,685
50,839
18,365

$

649,410
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Capital asset activity in the business-type activities for the year ended September 30, 2018, was as
follows:
10/1/2017
Balance, As Restated
Business-Type Activities
Capital assets not
being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

$

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

192,622
205,856

Increases

$

224,896

Decreases

$

9/30/2018
Balance

Transfers

-

$

(418,753)

$

192,622
11,999

398,478

224,896

-

(418,753)

Capital assets being
depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Office furniture and equipment
Vehicles

200,068
269,827
15,402,946
7,020
211,319

5,050
87,367
-

-

858,950
56,763
-

205,118
357,194
16,261,896
63,783
211,319

Total capital assets
being depreciated

16,091,180

92,417

-

915,713

17,099,310

(10,670,394)

(411,779)

-

-

5,420,786

(319,362)

-

915,713

Less accumulated depreciation:
Total capital assets being
depreciated (net)
Business-type activities
capital assets, net

$

5,819,264

$

(94,466)

$

-

$

496,960

204,621

(11,082,173)

6,017,137
$
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Note 7:

Long-Term Obligations

As of September 30, 2018 the City’s bonds and notes payable consisted of the following:

Governmental
Activities

Total
Primary
Government

Business-Type
Activities

Certificates of Obligation
$4,295,000, 2005 Combination Tax and
Revenue C.O. bonds, due in semi-annual
installments through February 1,
2044, 4.125%

$

-

$

3,575,000

$

3,575,000

$5,648,000, 2016 Certificates of
Obligation, due in quarterly
installments through December 15,
2040, 2.350%

5,598,405

-

5,598,405

$2,000,000, 2017 Certificates of
Obligation, due in quarterly
installments through April 5,
2026, 3.000%

1,235,419

-

1,235,419

$

6,833,824

$

$

368,117

$

3,575,000

$

10,408,824

$

368,117

Notes Payable
$724,727 note payable, due in quarterly
installments through June 14,
2031, 4.750%

-

$386,000 note payable, due in quarterly
installments through April 13,
2032, 5.000%

223,883

-

223,883

$200,000 note payable, due in quarterly
installments through July 31,
2023, 5,315%

110,569

-

110,569

$127,626, note payable, due in quarterly
installments through July 10,
2019, 3.875%

20,273

-

20,273

$117,000, note payable, due in monthly
installments through October 17,
2019, 3.875%

62,424

-

62,424

$105,000, note payable, due in quarterly
installments through July 10,
2022, 3.875%

28,181

-

28,181

$

813,448

$

-

$

813,448
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The City authorized Certificates of Obligation in September 2016 with a financial institution to
finance the cost of construction of a new municipal complex and community center. Advances are
made on the debt as construction occurs, with a maximum amount of $5,648,000 to be issued. The
Certificates have an interest rate of 2.35%, with quarterly payments of principal and interest
commencing in May 2018 and due through 2040. The City had draws on the debt during year
ended September 30, 2018 of $3,660,011. Amounts due to the financial institution as of September
30, 2018 amount to $5,598,405.
The City authorized Certificates of Obligation in April 2017 with a financial institution to finance
the planning of and completion of capital improvements to the water and sewer system and
information technology for the City. Advances are made on the debt as improvements occur, with a
maximum amount of $2,000,000 to be issued. The Certificates have an interest rate of 3.00%, with
quarterly payments of principal and interest commencing in July 2018 and due through April 2026.
The City had draws on the debt during year ended September 30, 2018 of $449,571. Amounts due
to the financial institution as of September 30, 2018 amount to $1,235,419.
Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended September 30, 2018 are as follows:
10/1/2017
Balance, As Restated
Governmental Activities
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Capital lease
Compensated absences
Total governmental activities

$

955,434
2,813,873
96,850

$

4,109,582
39,768
103,388

$

(141,986)
(89,631)
(85,943)

$

3,866,157

$

4,252,738

$

(317,560)

Business-type Activities
Bonds payable
Compensated absences
Total business-type activities

Reductions

Additions

3,650,000
10,930
$

3,660,930

29,798
$

29,798

$

(75,000)
(16,944)
$

(91,944)

Due
Within
One Year

Ending
Balance
813,448
6,833,824
39,768
114,295

$

135,526
298,959
19,686
-

7,801,335

$

454,171

3,575,000
23,784
$

3,598,784

80,000
$
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Debt service requirements on long-term debt at September 30, 2018 are as follows:
Bonds Payable
Fiscal
Year

Principal

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039-2043
2044
Total

298,959
312,797
329,242
345,231
362,882
764,593
1,199,775
1,965,393
1,254,952
$

Fiscal
Year

6,833,824

Principal

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
Total

Governmental Activities
Interest
186,731
178,171
169,009
159,616
149,723
587,282
458,076
278,099
38,071
$

813,448

2,204,778

$

180,960

9,038,602

Business-Type Activities
Interest

80,000
80,000
85,000
90,000
90,000
525,000
650,000
785,000
970,000
220,000
$

3,575,000

Total

145,832
142,918
139,130
135,522
131,809
598,339
476,787
329,378
148,757
4,575
$

2,253,047

225,832
222,918
224,130
225,522
221,809
1,123,339
1,126,787
1,114,378
1,118,757
224,575
$

Total

34,520
30,276
26,283
22,155
17,975
41,894
7,857
$

Principal

485,690
490,968
498,251
504,847
512,605
1,351,875
1,657,851
2,243,492
1,293,023
-

Notes payable
Governmental Activities
Interest

135,526
90,776
94,769
93,218
85,657
236,882
76,620
$

Total

170,046
121,052
121,052
115,373
103,632
278,776
84,477
$

994,408
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Note 8:

Employee Retirement System

Plan Description
The City participates as one of over 880 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS).
TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS
Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer
retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the
general administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees.
Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is
not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS’s defined benefit pension plan is a taxqualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly
available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.
All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.
Benefits Provided
TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.
At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest,
and the city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may
choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payments options. Members may also
choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a partial lump sum distribution in an amount equal to
12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member’s deposits and interest.
The plan provisions are adopted by the City Council, within the options available in the state
statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:
Deposit rate
Matching ratio (City to employee)
Years required for vesting
Service retirement eligibility
Updated service credit
Annuity increase (to retirees)

7%
2 to 1
5
25 years to any age,
5 years at age 60 and above
100% Repeating
30% of CPI Repeating

Members can retire at certain ages, based on the years of service with the City. The Service
Retirement Eligibilities for the city are 5 years at 60 years of age, or 25 years at any age.
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Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee’s contributions to the plan, with interest, and Cityfinanced monetary credits, with interest. At the date the plan began, the City granted monetary
credits for service rendered before the plan began of a theoretical amount equal to two times what
would have been contributed by the employee, with interest, prior to establishment of the plan.
Monetary credits for service since the plan began are 200% of the employee’s accumulated
contributions.
In addition, the City can grant as often as annually another type of monetary credit referred to as an
updated service credit which is a theoretical amount which, when added to the employee’s
accumulated contributions and the monetary credits for service since the plan began, would be the
total monetary credits and employee contributions accumulated with interest if the current employee
contribution rate and the City matching percent had always been in existence and if the employee’s
salary had always been the average of his salary in the last three years that are one year before the
effective date. At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s accumulated
contributions with interest and the employer-financed monetary credits with interest were used to
purchase an annuity.
Employees Covered By Benefit Terms
At the December 31, 2017 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees
Total

24
43
44
111

Contributions
The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross
earnings, and the city matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by
the governing body of the city. Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each
city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost
method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability.
Employees for the City were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings during the
year ended September 30, 2018. The contribution rates for the City were 14.99% and 15.19% in
calendar years 2017 and 2018, respectively. The City’s contributions to TMRS for the year ended
September 30, 2018, were $278,821 and were equal to the required contributions.
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Net Pension Liability
The City’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2017 and the total pension liability
(TPL) used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date.
Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:
Inflation
Overall payroll growth
Investment rate of return

2.5% per year
3.0%
6.75%

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees,
and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with blue
collar adjustments, with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality
improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality
Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates
multiplied by 103% with a 3- year set-forward for both males and females. In addition, a 3%
minimum mortality rate is applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who become
disabled. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future
mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.
Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of
actuarial experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period December 31, 2010
through December 31, 2014. Healthy post-retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates
were updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011,
and dated December 31, 2013. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on
both capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and
long-term funding needs of TMRS.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building- block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation.
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The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Target Allocation

Domestic Equity
International Equity
Core Fixed Income
Non-Core Fixed Income
Real Return
Real Estate
Absolute Return
Private Equity
Total

17.50%
17.50%
10.00%
20.00%
10.00%
10.00%
10.00%
5.00%
100.00%

4.55%
6.35%
1.00%
3.90%
3.80%
4.50%
3.75%
7.50%

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will
be made at the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
Changes in the Net Pension Liability
Total Pension
Liability (a)
Balances as of 10/01/17
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Change of benefit terms
Difference between expected
and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expenses
Other charges
Net changes
Balances as of 9/30/18

$

$

10,808,506

Fiduciary
Net Position (b)
$

Net Pension
Liability(a) - (b)

8,252,438

$

2,556,068

388,522
653,112
(896,009)

-

388,522
653,112
(896,009)

(269,495)
-

354,987
167,673
1,144,618

(269,495)
(354,987)
(167,673)
(1,144,618)

(862,057)
(985,927)
9,822,579

(862,057)
(5,927)
(300)
798,994
9,051,432

5,927
300
(1,784,921)
771,147

$

$
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The net pension liability attributable to the governmental activities will be liquidated primarily
by the general fund.
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
6.75%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%)
than the current rate:

City's net pension liability

1% Decrease
(5.75%)

Current Single Rate
Assumption (6.75%)

$

$

2,272,204

1% Increase
(7.75%)

771,147

$

(437,516)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separatelyissued TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the internet at www.tmrs.com.
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $625,559.
At September 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and
actual economic experience
Change in acturial assumptions
Net difference between projected and
actual investment earnings
Contributions subsequent to
the measurement date

$

30,060
32,791

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

$

-

$

186,932
249,783

316,710
262,697

$

579,407
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Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date but before the end of the City’s reporting period of $186,932 will be recognized
as a reduction of the net pension liability for year ending September 30, 2019. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year Ending September 30,
2019
2020
2021
2022

Net deferred
outflows (inflows)
of resources
$

$

Note 9:

(53,266)
(94,265)
(209,148)
(159,877)
(516,556)

Other Postemployment Benefits

Supplemental Death Benefits Fund Description
The City also participates in the single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan providing group-term
life insurance which is operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and is known
as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide
group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may terminate
coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before
November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1.
The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the
employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings, for the 12-month
period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an
“other postemployment benefit”, or OPEB. The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually
required rate as determined by an annual actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of
providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure the
adequate resources are available to meet all death benefits payments for the upcoming year; the
intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance during the employees’ entire careers. No assets
are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.
At the December 31, 2017 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:
Inactive employees currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees
Total

21
11
44
76
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Total OPEB Liability
The City’s total OPEB liability of $141,896 ($102,165 for governmental activities and $39,731 for
business-type activities) was measured as of December 31, 2017, and was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date.
Actuarial Assumptions
The City’s total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the
measurement date, unless otherwise specified:
December 31, 2017

Discount Rate
Inflation
Salary Increase
Administrative expenses
Mortality rates – service retirees
Mortality rates – disabled retirees

3.31% as of December 31, 2017 (3.78% as of December 31, 2016)
2.50%
3.50% to 10.50%, including inflation
All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust and accounted for under reporting
requirements under GASB Statement No. 68.
RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and
female rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB.
RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and
female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3 year set-forward for both males and females. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB to account for future mortality improvements
subject to the 3% floor.

Discount Rate
The TMRS SDBF is treated as unfunded OPEB plan because the SDBF trust covers both actives
and retirees and the assets are not segregated for these groups. Under GASBS No. 75 (paragraph
155), the discount rate for an unfunded OPEB plan should be based on 20-year tax-exempt AA or
higher Municipal Bonds. Therefore, a discount rate of 3.31% based on the 20-Year Municipal GO
AA Index published by bondbuyer.com is used as of the measurement date of December 31, 2017.
At transition, GASBS No. 75 also requires that the Total OPEB Liability (TOL) as of the prior
fiscal year end be estimated based on the 20-Year Bond GO Index.
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Changes in the Total OPEB Liability:
Total OPEB
Liability
Balances as of 10/1/17
Changes for the year:
Service Cost
Interest on total OPEB liability
Effect of assumption changes (change in discount rate)
Benefit payments

$

Balances as of 9/30/18

$

121,933
4,551
4,681
11,450
(719)
141,896

The total OPEB liability attributable to the governmental activities will be liquidated primarily by
the general fund.
Sensitivity of Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The total OPEB liability of the City has been calculated using a discount rate of 3.31%. The
following presents the total OPEB liability using a discount rate of 1% higher and 1% lower than
the current discount rate:
1% Decrease
2.31%
Total OPEB Liability

$

171,919

Current Discount Rate
3.31%
$

141,896

1% Increase
4.31%
$

119,096

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources
For the year ended September 30, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense of $11,409. At
September 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:

Change of assumptions
Benefit payments made subsequent to measurement date
Total

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
$
9,273
2,737
$
12,010
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Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from benefit payments subsequent to the
measurement date but before the end of the City’s reporting period of $2,737 will be recognized as
a decrease to the total OPEB liability during the year ended September 30, 2019. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as
follows:
Amortization of
Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Year Ending September 30,
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

$

$

2,177
2,177
2,177
2,177
565
9,273

Note 10: Commitments and Contingencies
Risk Management
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of assets,
error and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2018, the City
obtained general liability coverage at a cost that is considered to be economically justifiable by
joining together with other governmental entities in the State as a member of the Texas Municipal
League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TML). TML is a self-funded pool operating as a common
risk management and insurance program. The City pays an annual premium to TML for its above
insurance coverage. The agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be selfsustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims
in excess of acceptable risk levels; however, each category of coverage has its own level of
reinsurance. The City continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss. There were
no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
Contingent Liabilities
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures
that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
The City is periodically the defendant in lawsuits arising principally in the normal course of
operations. In the opinion of management, the outcome of these lawsuits will not have a material
adverse effect on the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, no provision for losses
has been recorded.
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Note 11: Change in Accounting Principle and Restatement of Prior Year
Financial Statements
The City adopted and implemented the following GASB Statement which became effective for
fiscal year 2018:
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions - GASB 75 replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASB 75
requires more extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI) about the
OPEB liabilities. The City has implemented this Statement in fiscal year 2018 and, accordingly,
has restated beginning net position within the government-wide financial statements as of October
1, 2017, of ($85,619) related to Governmental Activities and ($33,296) related to Business-Type
Activities. Additionally, beginning net position as of October 1, 2017 for the Water, Sewer, and
Sanitation Fund was restated by ($33,296) as a result of adopting GASB 75.
Additonally, several error corrections were made to various funds, governmental-activties, and
business-type activities as identified below. The following financial statement line items for the
year ended September 30, 2017, were affected by the change in accounting principle and error
corrections:

Government-Wide
Governmental
Activities
Net Position, Beginning of Year,
As Previously Reported

$

7,996,040

Business-Type
Activities
$

4,564,030

Change in Accounting Principle

(85,619)

(33,296)

Correction of Error:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Capital assets, net
Other payables
Unearned revenue
Notes payable
Net pension liability

7,080
(38,471)
(1,936)
(73,587)
408,737

(65,137)
(9,202)
5,401
73,587
(408,737)

Net Position, Beginning of Year,
As Restated

$

8,212,244

$

4,126,646
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Governmental Funds
Community
Activity
Fund
Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year,
As Previously Reported

$

Correction of Error:
Cash and cash equivalents
Unearned revenue
Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year,
As Restated

35,705

7,080
(1,936)

$

40,849

Note 12: New Accounting Pronouncements
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities – This statement improves guidance regarding the
identification of fiduciary activities for financial and accounting reporting purposes and how these
activities should be reported. This statement will be effective for the City in fiscal year 2020.
Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017 – This statement aims to improve consistency in accounting and
financial reporting by addressing practice issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair
value measurement, and postemployment benefits. This statement will be effective for the City in
fiscal year 2019.
Statement No. 87, Leases – This statement establishes a single approach to accounting for and
reporting leases by state and local governments. This statement will be effective for the City in
fiscal year 2021.
Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements – This statement aims to improve the information that is disclosed in notes to
government financial statements related to debt. It also clarifies which liabilities governments
should include when disclosing information related to debt. This statement will be effective for the
City in fiscal year 2019.
GASB Statement No. 90: Majority Equity Interests is an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14
and No. 61 – This Statement specifies that a majority equity in a legally separate organization
should be reported as an investment if a governments holding of the equity interest meets the
definition of an investment. This standard becomes effective for the City in fiscal year 2019.
The City is in the process of evaluating the impact of these statements on its net position.
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Total Pension Liability:
Service cost
Interest
Changes in benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Net change in total pension liability

Measurement Year
2017

Measurement Year
2016

Measurement Year
2015

Measurement Year
2014

$

$

$

$

Total pension liability – Beginning
Total pension liability – Ending (a)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions – employer
Contributions – employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of empoyee contributions
Administrative expense
Other
Net change in plan fiduciary net position

10,808,506

City’s net pension liability – Ending (a) – (b)

9,822,579

$

$

354,987
167,673
1,144,618
(862,057)
(5,927)
(300)
798,994

$

8,252,438

City's Net pension liability as a percentage of covered
payroll

10,808,506

378,465
185,862
502,148
(233,549)
(5,668)
(306)
826,952

404,244
640,316
90,201
101,103
(150,881)
1,084,983
9,020,694

$

$

7,425,486

10,105,677

386,100
186,779
10,330
(150,881)
(6,291)
(311)
425,726

360,186
583,181
6,297
(160,059)
789,605
8,231,089

$

$

6,999,760

9,020,694

354,901
164,524
359,633
(160,059)
(3,754)
(309)
714,936
6,284,824

$

9,051,432

$

8,252,438

$

7,425,486

$

6,999,760

$

771,147

$

2,556,068

$

2,680,191

$

2,020,934

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability
Covered payroll

420,580
688,445
(172,647)
(233,549)
702,829
10,105,677

$

Plan fiduciary net position – Beginning
Plan fiduciary net position – Ending (b)

388,522
653,112
(896,009)
(269,495)
(862,057)
(985,927)

92.15%
$

2,780,867

27.73%

76.35%
$

2,655,177

96.27%

73.48%
$

2,668,278

77.60%
$

2,350,340

100.45%

85.98%

Note: The information in this schedule has been determined as of the measurement date (December
31) of the City’s net pension liability and is intended to show information for 10 years. However,
until a full 10-year trend is compiled in accordance with the provision of GASB 68, only periods
for which such information is available are presented.
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Actuarially determined contribution

Fiscal Year
2018
$ 410,456

Contributions in realtion to the actuarially
determined contribution

Fiscal Year
2017
$ 378,465

(410,456)

(411,783)

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Covered payroll

$ 2,780,867

$ 2,655,177

14.76%

14.25%

Contributions as a percentage of covered
payroll

-

Fiscal Year
2016
$
386,100

$

(33,318)

Fiscal Year
2015
$
354,901

(385,887)

(383,871)

$

213

$

$

2,668,278

$

14.47%

(28,970)
2,350,340

15.10%

Note: The schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

Valuation Date
Actuarially determined contribution rates are
calculated as of December 31 and become
effective in January 13 months later.
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates
Actuarial Cost Method – Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method – Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining Amortization Period – 28 years
Asset Valuation Method – 10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor
Inflation – 2.5%
Salary Increases – 3.50% to 10.50% including inflation
Investment Rate of Return – 6.75%
Retirement Age – Experience-based table of rates that are specific the City’s plan of benefits. Last updated for the 2015
valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2010-2014
Mortality – RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female
rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB.
Other Information
Decreased repeating COLA from 70% to 30%.
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Total OPEB liability:
Service Cost
Interest on the total OPEB liability
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability

$

Total OPEB liability (Beginning)

4,551
4,681
11,450
(719)
19,963
121,933

Total OPEB liability (Ending)

$

141,896

Covered payroll

$

2,395,329

Total OPEB liability as a percentage
of covered payroll

5.92%

Note: The information in this schedule has been determined as of the measurement date
(December 31) of the City’s total OPEB liability and is intended to show information for 10
years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled in accordance with the provision of GASB
75, only periods for which such information is available are presented.
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CitC

Actual
GAAP
Basis

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise fees
License and permits
Charges for services
Economic development support
Intergovernmental
Administrative Allocation
Other
Total revenues

$

1,854,846
363,774
200,000
41,500
822,500
85,400
184,817
67,650
3,620,487

$

1,898,383
415,619
534,868
41,000
392,450
93,050
184,817
765,261
50,137
4,375,585

$

1,886,598
419,602
552,827
43,068
344,005
103,833
197,501
703,612
214,739
4,465,785

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$

(11,785)
3,983
17,959
2,068
(48,445)
10,783
12,684
(61,649)
164,602
90,200

Expenditures
Administration
City Secretary
Finance
Human Resources
Police
Communications
Fire
Animal Control
Development Services
Municipal Court
Streets
Parks
Community Center
Economic Development
Non-Departmental
Capital Outlay

391,240
119,403
301,090
105,232
1,164,815
252,037
1,011,694
88,244
170,905
371,055
326,565
19,285
72,400
236,573
7,039

344,260
111,755
330,072
89,051
1,073,205
219,823
1,032,857
45,317
141,314
151,974
278,030
34,267
11,291
74,595
388,435
124,330

331,458
113,096
321,759
88,392
982,085
222,283
971,817
40,063
133,566
114,687
230,600
34,450
12,457
83,367
388,645
137,914

Total expenditures

4,637,577

4,450,576

4,206,639

243,937

334,137

12,802
(1,341)
8,313
659
91,120
(2,460)
61,040
5,254
7,748
37,287
47,430
(183)
(1,166)
(8,772)
(210)
(13,584)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

(1,017,090)

(74,991)

259,146

Other financing sources (uses)
Capital lease
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out

1,079,983
(11,650)

40,000
21,854
(146,451)

39,768
5,613
21,854
(147,044)

232
(5,613)
(593)

1,068,333

(84,597)

(79,809)

(5,974)

51,243

(159,588)

179,337

328,163

526,889

526,889

526,889

-

Total other financing sources (uses)
Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year
Fund Balance, End of Year

$

578,132

$

367,301

$

706,226

$

338,925
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A. General Fund Budgetary Analysis
Budgetary Information
The City Council adopts an annual budget. City management may transfer part or all of any
unencumbered appropriation balance within specific categories (i.e., personnel, operations, supplies,
or capital outlay) within programs; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of the
categories must be approved by the City Council. The City, for management purposes, adopts
budgets for all funds, except for the Community Activity Fund and Grants Fund. Legal budgets are
also adopted for all funds, except for the Community Activity Fund and Grants Fund and the legal
level of control is the fund level.
All unused appropriations, except appropriations for capital expenditures, lapse at the close of the
fiscal year to the extent they have not been expended or encumbered. An appropriation for capital
expenditures shall continue in force until the purpose for which it was made is accomplished or
abandoned. No supplemental budgetary appropriations occurred in the debt service fund or in the
general fund. Revised budgets, if any, are used for budget versus actual comparisons.
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Community
Activity
Fund

Total
Nonmajor
Funds

Grants
Fund

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibles)
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid items
Total assets

46,600

995

-

8,000
10,000
-

46,600

8,000
10,000
995

47,595

18,000

65,595

970
5,776

18,000

970
18,000
5,776

6,746

18,000

24,746

995

-

995

39,854

-

39,854

Total fund balances

40,849

-

40,849

Total liabilities
and fund balances

47,595

18,000

65,595

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Nonspendable for inventory and prepaid items
Restricted for
City promotions
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Community
Activity
Fund

Revenues
Other revenues
Operating grants and contributions

Total
Nonmajor
Funds

Grants
Fund

2,887
-

10,000
91,615

12,887
91,615

2,887

101,615

104,502

2,887

8,158
33,755
-

-

59,702

8,158
33,755
2,887
59,702

2,887

101,615

104,502

-

-

-

-

-

-

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

40,849

-

40,849

Fund Balances, End of Year

40,849

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Fire and rescue
Community development
and recreation
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balances

$

-

$

40,849
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FY 18-19 BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
2018-2019

REVENUES:
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Franchise Fees
License and Permits
Charge for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Economic Development Support
Intergovernmental
Administrative Allocation
Other
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Administration
City Secretary
Finance
Human Resources
Police
Fire
Animal Control
Development Services
Municipal Court
Streets
Parks
Community Center
Economic Development-Type A
Economic Development-Type B
Non-Departmental
Total Expenditures
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from Other Funds
Transfer to Other Funds
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE
ENDING FUND BALANCE

ORIGINAL
BUDGET
2,011,822
430,520
573,187
32,000
309,950
75,000
95,433
193,000
729,640
17,900
4,468,452

CHANGE
75,000
10,833
(39,633)
46,200

312,658
116,048
305,668
106,826
1,207,597
1,111,331
73,098
259,655
106,262
326,160
59,188
19,314
37,216
37,216
353,951
4,432,188

2,875
2,707
71,665
420
(100,000)
22,333
-

312,658
116,048
308,543
106,826
1,210,304
1,182,996
73,518
159,655
106,262
326,160
59,188
19,314
37,216
37,216
376,284
4,432,188

132,613
58,688
163,398
52,585
524,767
493,680
35,280
70,888
58,648
197,545
22,213
9,120
20,399
20,399
165,990
2,026,213

180,045
57,360
145,145
54,241
685,537
689,316
38,238
88,767
47,614
128,615
36,975
10,194
16,817
16,817
210,294
2,405,975

1,094,939

1,012,475

36,264

46,200

82,464

-

-

-

36,264
491,632
$

2018-2019
2018-2019
VARIANCE
PROJECTED
FINAL
YTD
FAVORABLE
BUDGET
ACTUAL
(UNFAVORABLE)
2,011,822 $
1,901,453 $
(110,369)
430,520
217,731
(212,789)
573,187
211,336
(361,851)
32,000
16,899
(15,101)
309,950
182,002
(127,948)
150,000
93,246
(56,754)
106,266
53,513
(52,753)
193,000
98,235
(94,765)
690,007
323,071
(366,936)
17,900
23,666
5,766
4,514,652
3,121,152
(1,393,500)

527,896 $
43
days reserve

46,200
214,594
260,794 $

82,464
706,226

1,094,939
706,226

788,690 $
1,801,165 $
65
324
days reserve
days reserve

1,012,475
1,012,475

50.00%

% FY
94.51%
50.57%
36.87%
52.81%
58.72%
62.16%
50.36%
50.90%
46.82%
132.21%
69.13%
42.41%
50.57%
52.96%
49.22%
43.36%
41.73%
47.99%
44.40%
55.19%
60.57%
37.53%
47.22%
54.81%
54.81%
44.11%
45.72%
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FY 18-19 BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WATER & SEWER FUND
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
2018-2019

FUND 200 - WATER/SEWER/SANI
REVENUES:
Water
Sewer
Sanitation
Penalties and Interest
Other
Total Revenues

ORIGINAL
BUDGET
$

CHANGE

2,036,986 $
1,002,684
295,008
118,364
49,275
3,502,317

-

EXPENDITURES:
Water Administration
Maintenance
Water
Sewer
Sanitation
Debt Prinicipal & Interest
Capital Expenditures
Total Expenditures

1,060,103
44,545
1,214,680
431,633
295,008
224,028
85,000
3,354,997

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

147,320

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer to Debt Service Fund
Transfer to W/S Cap Proj Fund

(147,320)
-

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE
ENDING FUND BALANCE

1,257,924
$

1,257,924 $
137
days reserve

2018-2019
PROJECTED
FINAL
BUDGET
$

2018-2019

VARIANCE

50.00%

YTD
ACTUAL

FAVORABLE
(UNFAVORABLE)

% FY

2,036,986 $
1,002,684
295,008
118,364
49,275
3,502,317

899,922 $
492,447
149,665
52,860
34,865
1,629,759

-

1,060,103
44,545
1,214,680
431,633
295,008
224,028
85,000
3,354,997

468,030
21,739
709,867
189,428
143,201
153,734
157,368
1,843,367

-

147,320

(213,608)

(775,000)

(147,320)
(775,000)

(147,320)
(775,000)

(775,000)
(9,494)

(775,000)
1,248,430

(1,135,928)
1,248,430

(784,494) $

473,430 $
112,502 $
52
22
days reserve
days reserve

(1,137,064)
(510,237)
(145,343)
(65,504)
(14,410)
(1,872,558)

44.18%
49.11%
50.73%
44.66%
70.76%
46.53%

592,073 44.15%
22,806 48.80%
504,813 58.44%
242,205 43.89%
151,807 48.54%
70,294 68.62%
(72,368) 185.14%
1,511,630 54.94%
(360,928) -145.00%
-

100.00%
100.00%

(360,928) 146.57%
100.00%
(360,928)

On November 1, 2018, City Council voted to commit $775,000 of the Water/Sewer Fund reserves to pay for a sewer
project named Hyline Sewer Extension. This amount was transferred to a new capital project fund set up for W&S
capital projects to be funded with committed resources.

23.76%
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City Council
Agenda Item Report
May 23rd, 2019

Contact – Brian LaBorde, City Manager,
817-641-3336
citymanager@keenetx.com

PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION WITH DIRECTION TO
STAFF REGARDING THE CITY’S WATER SUPPLY AND DISTRIBUTION
SYSTEM. (CITY ENGINEER DEREK TURNER, P.E., JACOBS/MARTIN)
SUBJECT:

1.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY
Staff provided an update on a study being performed on all groundwater well sites
(GWWS).

2.

FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY

3.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Derek Turner will be providing the report that entails costs to repair our
GWWS and place back online, but also, see if such groundwater wells
can mitigate the use of surface water.

N/A

4.

ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION

5.

ENCLOSURE

Presentation and discussion
•

Presentation will sent out next week

City Council
Agenda Item Report
May 23rd, 2019

Contact – Brian LaBorde, City Manager,
817-641-3336
citymanager@keenetx.com

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING AN
ORDINANCE DISANNEXING CERTAIN CORPORATE TERRITORY
COMPRISING APPROXIMATELY 102.08 ACRES FROM THE CITY’S
CORPORATE LIMITS (SAVE AND EXCEPT CERTAIN DESIGNATED
ROADS) AND RETAINING SUCH LAND IN THE CITY’S
EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION. (SHELTON DISANNEXATION
AGREEMENT)

SUBJECT:

1.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY
As Council recalls, the agreement was approved last Council meeting

2.

FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY

3.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

This ordinance per the agreement is required to disannex the territory.

N/A

4.

ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION

5.

ENCLOSURE

Consideration of approval of the ordinance per the agreement
•

Draft Ordinance

CITY OF KEENE, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-596
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KEENE, TEXAS, DISANNEXING
CERTAIN
CORPORATE
TERRITORY,
COMPRISING
APPROXIMATELY 102.08 ACRES AND DESCRIBED IN EXHIBITS A
AND B ATTACHED HERETO, FROM THE CITY’S CORPORATE
LIMITS (SAVE AND EXCEPT CERTAIN DESIGNATED ROADS);
RETAINING SUCH LAND IN THE CITY’S EXTRATERRITORIAL
JURISDICTION; PROVIDING FOR AMENDING AND CORRECTING
THE OFFICIAL MAP AND BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF KEENE,
TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR THE FILING OF THIS ORDINANCE WITH
THE COUNTY CLERK; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE;
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, on May 9, 2019, the City of Keene, Texas (“City”), entered into a
Settlement Agreement (“Agreement”) in the litigation styled “Ronald Eugene Shelton, et al. v.
City of Keene, Texas,” Cause No. DC-C201800139, in the 18th District Court of Johnson County,
Texas, which, among other matters, provided for the agreed disannexation of approximately
102.08 acres, described by metes and bounds in Exhibit A attached hereto and graphically
portrayed in the survey drawing attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Property”) (save and except
for the roads shown as CR 318 and FM 3136 on Exhibit B); and
WHEREAS, the City is authorized by Sections 43.142 and 43.145 of the Texas Local
Government Code, and by Section 1.04 of its Home Rule Charter, to disannex an area from the
municipality; and
WHEREAS, the City, as part of its litigation settlement and as reflected in the
Agreement, desires to disannex the Property from the City’s corporate limits (save and except for
the roads shown as CR 318 and FM 3136 on Exhibit B), but retain the Property in the City’s
extraterritorial jurisdiction; and
WHEREAS, all procedures and requirements prescribed by state law and the City’s
Charter have been duly followed with respect to the disannexation of the Property.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF KEENE, TEXAS:
Section 1. Incorporation of Premises. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby
found to be true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes.
Section 2. Disannexation. The Property (save and except for the roads shown as CR
318 and FM 3136 on Exhibit B) is hereby disannexed from the corporate limits of the City of
Keene, Johnson County, Texas, and same is hereby no longer a part of the City.
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Section 3. Retention in Extraterritorial Jurisdiction. The Property (save and except
for the roads shown as CR 318 and FM 3136 on Exhibit B) shall become part of the City’s
extraterritorial jurisdiction immediately upon the disannexation of the Property.
Section 4. Map Revision. The official map and boundaries of the City heretofore
adopted and amended be and are hereby amended so as to exclude the Property (save and except
for the roads shown as CR 318 and FM 3136 on Exhibit B) from the corporate limits of the City,
but to include the Property within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction. The City Manager is
hereby directed and authorized to perform or cause to be performed all acts necessary to
effectuate this Ordinance, including any corrections to the official map of the City to reflect the
City’s boundaries and extraterritorial jurisdiction, as well as all appropriate filings with any and
all governmental agencies or entities so affected by the acts described in this Ordinance.
Section 5. Filing. The City Secretary is hereby directed to file with the County Clerk of
Johnson County, Texas, a certified copy of this Ordinance.
Section 6. Savings. This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the
City and shall not repeal any of the provisions of those ordinances except in those instances
where the provisions of those ordinances are in direct conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance.
Section 7. Severability. The sections, paragraphs, sentences, phrases, clauses and
words of this Ordinance are severable, and if any section, paragraph, sentence, phrase, clause or
word in this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid or
unconstitutional by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have
passed such remaining portions of this Ordinance despite such invalidity, which remaining
portions shall remain in full force and effect.
Section 8. Effective Date. This Ordinance, adopted by the City Council on the date set
forth below, shall take effect from and after its adoption.
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PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Keene, Texas, this the
23rd day of May, 2019.

Gary Heinrich, Mayor
ATTEST:

Holly Owens, City Secretary, TRMC
[SEAL]

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert F. Brown, City Attorney
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City Council
Agenda Item Report
May 23rd, 2019

Contact – Brian LaBorde, City Manager,
817-641-3336
citymanager@keenetx.com

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING THE
RELEASE
OF
CERTAIN
DESIGNATED
EXTRATERRITORIAL
JURISDICTION.

SUBJECT:

1.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY
As Council recalls, the agreement was approved last Council meeting

2.

FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY

3.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

This ordinance per the agreement is required to release ETJ.

N/A

4.

ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION

5.

ENCLOSURE

Consideration of approval of the ordinance per the agreement
•

Draft Ordinance

CITY OF KEENE, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-597
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KEENE, TEXAS, RELEASING
CERTAIN DESIGNATED EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION
COMPRISING APPROXIMATELY 40.67 ACRES AS DESCRIBED
HERETO FROM THE CITY’S EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION;
PROVIDING FOR AMENDING AND CORRECTING THE OFFICIAL
MAP OF THE CITY OF KEENE, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR THE
FILING OF THIS ORDINANCE WITH THE COUNTY CLERK;
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, on May 9, 2019, the City of Keene, Texas (“City”), entered into a
Settlement Agreement (“Agreement”) in the litigation styled “Ronald Eugene Shelton, et al. v.
City of Keene, Texas,” Cause No. DC-C201800139, in the 18th District Court of Johnson County,
Texas, which, among other matters, provided for the agreed release from the City’s
extraterritorial jurisdiction (“ETJ”) of certain property described as as Abstract 174, Tracts 2,
2A, 2A1, and 3, in the Johnson County Appraisal Records, which comprises approximately
40.67 acres and is hereinafter referred to as the “ETJ Release Property”; and
WHEREAS, the City is authorized by Section 42.023 of the Texas Local Government
Code, and by Section 1.04 of its Home Rule Charter, to release an area from the City’s ETJ; and
WHEREAS, the City, as part of its litigation settlement and as reflected in the
Agreement, desires to release the ETJ Release Property from the City’s ETJ; and
WHEREAS, all procedures and requirements prescribed by state law and the City’s
Charter have been duly followed with respect to the release of the ETJ Release Property from the
City’s ETJ.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF KEENE, TEXAS:
Section 1. Incorporation of Premises. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby
found to be true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes.
Section 2. Release of ETJ Pursuant to Local Government Code Section 42.023. The
City hereby reduces its ETJ by releasing the ETJ Release Property, as authorized by Texas Local
Government Code Section 42.023, and as authorized by the Agreement.
Section 3. Map Revision. The official map and boundaries of the City heretofore
adopted and amended be and are hereby amended so as to exclude the ETJ Release Property
from the ETJ limits of the City. The City Manager is hereby directed and authorized to perform
or cause to be performed all acts necessary to effectuate this Ordinance, including any
corrections to the official map of the City to reflect the City’s ETJ, as well as all appropriate
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filings with any and all governmental agencies or entities so affected by the acts described in this
Ordinance.
Section 4. Filing. The City Secretary is hereby directed to file with the County Clerk of
Johnson County, Texas, a certified copy of this Ordinance.
Section 5. Savings. This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the
City and shall not repeal any of the provisions of those ordinances except in those instances
where the provisions of those ordinances are in direct conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance.
Section 6. Severability. The sections, paragraphs, sentences, phrases, clauses and
words of this Ordinance are severable, and if any section, paragraph, sentence, phrase, clause or
word in this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid or
unconstitutional by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have
passed such remaining portions of this Ordinance despite such invalidity, which remaining
portions shall remain in full force and effect.
Section 7. Effective Date. This Ordinance, adopted by the City Council on the date set
forth below, shall take effect from and after its adoption.
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Keene, Texas, this the
23rd day of May, 2019.

Gary Heinrich, Mayor
ATTEST:

Holly Owens, City Secretary, TRMC
[SEAL]

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert F. Brown, City Attorney
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City Council
Agenda Item Report
May 23, 2019
Contact – Emmitt Jackson, Chief of Police,
817-641-7831
chiefjackson@keenetx.com
SUBJECT: Deliberation and possible action regarding direction from City Council
on the City’s Animal Control Ordinance

1.

BACKGROUND

As council is aware, the city has an animal ordinance which directs the Animal Control Officer
to pick up and take into custody any aggressive animal that is at large. This issue was brought
before council, and ordinance changed, May 17, 2018.

2.

ANALYSIS

The City of Keene Ordinance that covers animals, Chapter 94, was passed in 1987. This
ordinance covers the responsibilities of animal control and defines the city’s position on how
to deal with animals that are at large.
The code, in section 94.01, defines an animal to be “at large” as follows:
“An animal that is not confined to the premises of its owner by a fence of sufficient strength
and height to prevent the animal from escaping therefrom, inside the house or other enclosure,
or secured on the premises by a leash of sufficient strength to prevent the animal from
escaping from the premises, and so arranged that the animal will remain upon the premises
when the leash is stretched to full length in any direction, or when under direct supervision of
owner or agent.”
Prior to the change in ordinance, section 94.46, which deals with impoundment of dogs and
cats, stated:
“The Animal Control Officer shall take into custody any dog or cat found at large within the
city, and shall impound the animal in the city shelter or other place as may be designated for
the purpose of impoundment. If it is possible to identify the owner by an identification tag,
rabies tag, city license or other reasonable means the owner shall be notified by the Animal
Control Department. The impounded animal shall be held for a period of three working days
and at the end of this period, if the animal has not been claimed and the proper fees paid as

prescribed herein, the dog or cat shall be put up for adoption or disposed of in a humane
manner.”
Current Animal Control protocol is to respond to calls regarding an animal at large and pick
up the animal if the animal is aggressive, has bitten a human, or is threatening a human or
another animal. Dogs or cats that are merely stray or loose are not picked up by animal
control or police officers.
This was done for several reasons:
1) The animal control officer is also the code enforcement agent for the city. Caring for nonaggressive stray animals that would be brought into the shelter would require a good deal
of time and expenditure to feed, water, and care for the animals that are being housed.
2) Absent a full-time animal control officer, the Keene Animal Shelter is not a viable location
for an increased number of animals. Ordinance requires the adoption or “humane
disposal” of the animals after three business days. The previous animal control officer,
Tracey Glenn, spent a large portion of her time getting to know, photographing, advertising
and caring for animals in order to get them adopted instead of euthanized. This is not
reasonable to expect from an animal control officer who is splitting time between animal
control and code enforcement.
3) Surrounding cities have already been approached about taking in the City of Keene’s
unclaimed or stray animals on a contract basis. Each either declined or proposed a
solution that was cost prohibitive. Also, a contract with the SPCA was explored previously
and council was not comfortable with the requirements of this contract.

3.

FISCAL IMPACT

Reducing the number of animals captured and housed in the city’s animal shelter has lead to
a definite reduction in expenditure for the care of animals within the shelter.

4.

CITY STRATEGIC GOALS:

Clarification of the existing ordinance pertaining to animals.

5.

ACTION/RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends retaining the language of Section 94.46 of the Keene Code of Ordinances,
which reads:
“The Animal Control Officer shall take into custody any dog or cat found at large within the city
and that has exhibited aggression, has bitten a human, or that is threatening a human or
other animal, and shall impound the animal in the city shelter or other place as may be
designated for the purpose of impoundment.”
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FY 18-19 BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WATER & SEWER FUND
REQUESTED BUDGET REVISIONS

FUND 200 - WATER/SEWER/SANI
REVENUES:
Water
Sewer
Sanitation
Penalties and Interest
Other
Total Revenues

2018-2019
ORIGINAL
BUDGET
$

2,036,986 $
1,002,684
295,008
118,364
49,275
3,502,317

2018-2019
FINAL
BUDGET

CHANGES
-

$

2018-2019
YTD
ACTUAL

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
(UNFAVORABLE)

2,036,986 $
1,002,684
295,008
118,364
49,275
3,502,317

899,922 $
492,447
149,665
52,860
34,865
1,629,759

1,053,860
44,545
1,529,884
468,929
295,008
229,028
178,823
3,800,077

468,030
21,739
709,867
189,428
143,201
153,734
157,368
1,843,367

50.00%
% FY

(1,137,064)
(510,237)
(145,343)
(65,504)
(14,410)
(1,872,558)

44.18%
49.11%
50.73%
44.66%
70.76%
46.53%

585,830
22,806
820,017
279,501
151,807
75,294
21,455
1,956,710

44.41%
48.80%
46.40%
40.40%
48.54%
67.12%
88.00%
48.51%

EXPENDITURES:
Water Administration
Maintenance
Water
Sewer
Sanitation
Debt Prinicipal & Interest
Capital Expenditures
Total Expenditures

1,060,103
44,545
1,214,680
431,633
295,008
224,028
85,000
3,354,997

(6,243)
315,204
37,296
5,000
93,823
445,080

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

147,320

(445,080)

(297,760)

(213,608)

84,152

71.74%

(147,320)
-

(400,000)

(147,320)
(400,000)

(147,320)
(400,000)

-

100.00%
100.00%

(845,080)
(9,494)

(845,080)
1,248,430

(760,928)
1,248,430

84,152
-

90.04%
100.00%

84,152

120.86%

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer to Debt Service Fund
Transfer to W/S Cap Proj Fund
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE
ENDING FUND BALANCE

1,257,924
$

1,257,924 $
137
days reserve

(854,574) $

403,350 $
487,502 $
39
97
days reserve
days reserve
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ORDINANCE NO. 2019-595

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KEENE, TEXAS, APPROVING AND
ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO THE BUDGET FOR OPERATING THE
MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT OF THE CITY OF KEENE FOR THE FISCAL
YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2018 AND ENDING ON SEPTEMBER
30, 2019; AND ESTABLISHING A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 2018-581 passed and approved on September 20, 2018. The City
Council of the City of Keene approved and adopted the City of Keene, Texas budget for the fiscal year
beginning October 1, 2018, and ending on September 30, 2019; and,
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the operating budget of the municipal
government of the City of Keene for the fiscal year October I, 2018 to September 30, 2019; and,
WHEREAS, said budget amendment has been submitted to the City Council by the City
Manager, in accordance with Financial Procedures in Article VI, Section 6.08 of the City Charter,
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEENE,
TEXAS:

Section I. That the City Council of the City of Keene does hereby ratify, approve and adopt the
amendments to the budget considered for fiscal year of October I, 2018 to September 30, 2019 as
identified in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
Section 2. That should any part, portion, or section of this ordinance be declared invalid or
inoperative or void for any reason by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision, opinion or
judgment shall in no way affect the remaining portions, parts, or sections or parts of section of this
ordinance, which provisions shall be, remain and continue to be in full force and effect.
Section 3. The appropriate officials are hereby authorized and directed to take those steps
necessary to accomplish such appropriation of funds and cause the same to be duly reflected in the
records of the City.
Section 4. That this ordinance shall be effective upon passage.
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on the _____ day of __________, 2019 at a regular meeting of
the City Council ofthe City of Keene, Texas by an affirmative vote of four (4) Council Members.

______________________________
Mayor, Gary Heinrich
ATTEST:

_______________________________
City Secretary, Holly Owens TRMC

City Council
Agenda Item Report
MAY 23, 2019
Contact – Holly Owens, City Secretary
817-641-3336
citysecretary@keentx.com
SUBJECT:

1.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON REMOVING BRIAN
LABORDE, AS AN AUTHORIZED SIGNER TO ALL THE ACCOUNTS
AT PINNACLE BANK FOR THE CITY OF KEENE.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY
This is a procedure when employees, officials and/or officers of the City change.

2.

FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY
Currently, Brian LaBorde, City Manager, Holly Owens, City Secretary, Mayor Gary
Heinrich and Mayor Pro-Tem, Gwen Beeson are authorized representatives with
Pinnacle Bank.

3.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
N/A

4.

ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval.

5.

ENCLOSURES
•

Resolution No. 2019-362.

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-362
RESOLUTION CHANGING AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES FOR ALL ACCOUNTS WITH PINNACLE BANK
FOR THE CITY OF KEENE, TEXAS.
WHEREAS, the resolution designated on one or more “Authorized Representatives”.
WHEREAS, the City of Keene now wishes to update and designate the following persons as the “Authorized
Representatives”.
WHEREAS, removing all other persons, not listed within this Resolution.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:
The following officers, officials or employees of the City of Keene are hereby designated as “Authorized
Representatives”:
Signature: _________________________________
Printed Name: Gary Heinrich
Title: Mayor
Signature: _________________________________
Printed Name: Gwen Beeson
Title: Mayor Pro Tem (Ward 2)
Signature: _________________________________
Printed Name: Holly Owens
Title: City Secretary
The foregoing supersedes and replaces the City of Keene’s previous designation of officers, officials or
employees of the City of Keene as “Authorized Representatives”.
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 23rd DAY OF MAY 2019.

_________________________________
ATTEST:
_________________________________
City Secretary, Holly Owens, T.R.M.C.

Mayor, Gary Heinrich

City Council
Agenda Item Report
May 23, 2019

Contact – Amber Bransom, Human Resources Administrator
817-641-3336 ext. 106
hradmin@keenetx.com
SUBJECT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION SELECTION OF THE NEW DIRECTOR OF
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – LANDIS ADAMS

1.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY

On May 6, 2019, the Economic Development Board Type B Board meet to discuss and to approve the hiring of
Landis Adams as the new Director of Economic Development. The board voted and returned a unanimous vote in
favor of hiring Mr. Adams.
On May 10, 2019, the Economic Development Board Type A Board meet to discuss and to approve the hiring of
Landis Adams as the new Director of Economic Development. The board voted and returned a unanimous vote in
favor of hiring Mr. Adams.

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY
Mr. Adams has accepted the position and is currently in the pre-employment screening process. Once he has
completed the process, he will begin work on June 10, 2019.

3. FINANCIAL IMPACT
Mr. Adams has agreed to an annual salary of $75,000.00, including benefits this equates to $102,767.00.

4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION
No budget action is required at this time because of salary savings from Mr. Talley’s departure on February 22,
2019.

5. ENCLOSURE
Landis Adams’ Biography

LANDIS ADAMS
9 7 9 - 4 1 7 - 7 6 1 3 │ L A N D I S @BCHISPANICCHAMBER.NET │ FREEPORT, T X 7 7 5 4 1

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE









Results-oriented and strategic leader with 22 years of extensive experience in accomplishing
remarkable outcomes in marketing, business retention, economic and community development.
Highly skilled in planning, organizing and implementing economic development functions from
marketing, business retention, business attraction and community involvement. Adept at
coordinating with various organizations and facilitating change in a community to support
organizational objectives. Possess proven success in event planning, economic development,
budgeting and project management. Strong background in relationship management, team
building and general business components while driving profitability and revenues within highly
competitive markets.

Economic Development
Budgets
Business Retention & Expansion
Workforce Development
Fundraising
Event Coordinator
Incentive Programs

AWARDS
 2017 Lions Club International Melvin
Jones Fellow Humanitarian Service
Award
 2013 Brazoria County Hispanic
Chamber of Commerce Small
Business of the Year
 2011 Hispanic Women in Leadership
Award for Valuable Service
 2008 Ambassador of the Month
Angleton Chamber of Commerce
 2007 Angleton Chamber of
Commerce Leadership Certification

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS
 Basic Economic Development
Certification - Accredited by
International Economic
Development Council
(2018)
 United States Army Veteran
(1990–1992)
 Brazosport High School Diploma
(1990)

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY
EDC Chairman - BRAZORIA COUNTY HISPANIC CHAMBER OF COMMERCE | 2011-CURRENT
PRESIDENT - PLATINUM MARKETING 1998-CURRENT
UNITED STATES ARMY | ADMINSTRATIVE SPECIALIST | 1990-1992

CAREER OVERVIEW
Emphasis In Economic Development
My vast experience in economic development through my certifications, marketing and civic
organizations, can contribute to any economic development program for a city. While I deal with
individual businesses on individual situations, that maintain a perspective on the city’s economy.
I have advised the City of Freeport’s city manager on emerging and existing economic
development issues. In addition, I have presented to local civic and business groups on proposed
economic development ideas and potential growth of new businesses and current business
retention.
I have helped businesses on grant programs, Chapter 380 agreements, HUB
certifications through the State of Texas, hotel motel tax funds and other incentives that
were awarded to increase businesses profits and expansions. From mom-and-pop businesses,
to established corporations I have implemented substantial job opportunities.
Through my marketing experience and dealing with businesses every day, as well as, City
government, I have focused on businesses that provided a significant economic impact. Along
with experience in business recruitment within the city limits, in conjunction with local chambers
of commerce and state officials has increased city’s existing workforce, educational institutions,
infrastructure, parks and events.
My experience is bringing in new businesses and business retention through marketing ideas and
knowledge of local demographics, infrastructure, taxes and adverse economic impacts.

CURRENT BOARDS AND COMMITTEES
 Chairman of the BCHCC Economic Development Committee
 President of the Citizens Police Academy for the Freeport Police Department
 Vice President Freeport Host Lions Club
 Vice President Sweeny Chamber of Commerce
 Brazosport ISD Education Foundation
 Board Member for the Village of Jones Creek Planning Commission
 Brazosport ISD Community Leadership Team
 Ambassador for the Brazoria County Hispanic Chamber of Commerce
 Event Coordinator Freeport Host Lions Club Annual Fishin’ Fiesta
 Entertainment Coordinator City of Freeport Riverfest
 Event Coordinator Brazoria County Hispanic Chamber of Commerce Hispanic Heritage
Festival

PAST BOARDS AND COMMITTEES
 President of the Lake Jackson Business Association
 President of the Brazoria County Jaycees
 Chairman of the West Columbia San Jacinto Festival
 Chairman of the 2013 Summertime Blues Festival
 Board Member for the West Columbia Chamber of Commerce
 President of the Southwest Chapter of Officials
 President of the St. Jerome’s Catholic Church
 Vice President of the St. Vincent De Paul Society
 Ambassador for the Angleton Chamber of Commerce
 Ambassador for the Brazosport Chamber of Commerce
 Ambassador for the West Columbia Chamber of Commerce
 Brazoria County Representative for the Texas Settlement Board of
Directors
 Board Member for the Lake Jackson Girls Softball Association

